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May 2, 2018

Corporation Finance Department
Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA,

Greenhills, Mandaluyong City

Attention:
Re :
Gentlemen:

Vicente Graciano P, Felizmenio, Jr.
Divector

GMA Holdings, Inc.
Definitive Information Statement

Our client, GMA Holdings, Inc. (the “Corporation”) filed its
Preliminary Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS) on April 19,
2018. In your letter dated April 20, 2018, which we received on
April 25, 2018, you directed our client to amend the same in
accordance with the remarks in your checklist attached to the letter.

In compliance thereof, we have incorporated the following:

(1) The corrected full name and address of Mr. Gilberto R.
Duavit, Jr. on page 6;

(2) The price information of PDRs as of the latest practicable
trading date on.page 23 and



(3) Undertaking in bold face prominent type to provide
without charge to each person solicited, on the written
request of any such person, copy of the registrant’s
annual report on SEC Form 17-A indicating the name
and address of the person to whom such request is to be
directed on page 20.

As regards the requirement to provide “a map of
conglomerate or group of companies,” the same is inapplicable to
the Corporation since it is not part of a conglomerate.

For the Honorable Commission’s comment pertaining to
Annex 68-D and E, please see attached marked index stating that
the same is not applicable. GMA Holdings is not part of GMA
Network’s consolidated FS and therefore do not have
receivables/payables with related parties eliminated for
consolidation. '

Moreover we corrected minor clerical errors and
incorporated minimal formal revisions for purposes of clarity and
presentation of the Definitive Information Statement.

With this, the undersigned respectfully requests the
Honorable Commission to approve the Company’s Definitive
Information Statement so the Company may distribute the same to
its stockholders.

Thank you very much.



Veryr truly yours,

BELO GOZON ELMA
PAREL ASUNCION & LUCILA

By:

ROBERTO RAFAEL V. LUCILA

I

MARIA ESTELITA A. GOZON
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May 2, 2018

NOTICE TO STOCKHOLDERS:
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.
Felipe L. Gozon
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya
Artemio V. Panganiban
Manuel P, Quiogue {Deceased)
Felipe S. Yalong

Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Holdings, Inc. is on
May 25, 2018 (Friday) at 10:00 a.m. at Dario (formerly Balducci) G/F Serendra, Bonifacio
Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City to consider, discuss or vote on the following:

Call to order

Certification and Notice of Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on August 18, 2017.
Report of the President

Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

Election of the External Auditor

Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting
Adjournment

©E® NS WS

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked and on
file with, or is submitted to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V. De la Costa
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City.

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 25, 2018 shall be entitled to
vote.

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting. Thank you.

For the Board of Directors:

ANNA TERESA M. GO?I\I//
- Corporate Secretary



We .are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unabie to attend the meeting but would
iike fo be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
submit the same fo the Office. of the Corporate Secretary on or before May 22, 2018. You may
deliver the proxy or send it in- advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of proxies
shall be held on May 24, 2018 at 10:00.a.m. at the GMA Network Center. '

PROXY

I/We hereby name and appoint _ _or in his/her absence, the Chairman -
of the meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Dario. (forr_nerly'Balducci), GIF Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City on Friday, May 25, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or adjournment
thereof. : ‘

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held



10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
AMENDED SEC FORM 20-1S

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Che_cklthe appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement

[ v ]Definitive Infor.malti‘on Statement

Name of Registrant as 'specifiéd in its charter: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Province, country or other_j_ufisdicﬁon of incdrporation or organization: PHILIPPINES
SEC ldentification _N_umber'08200602356

BIR Tax ldentification-Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office Postal Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY

Registrant's telephone number, including area code (632) 09827777

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

DATE. : May 25, 2018
TIME 10:00:a.m.
PLACE: Dario (formerly) Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders

May 3, 2018

In case of Proxy Solicitations: '

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE

Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE
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11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections. 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to

corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Qutstanding

Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs”) - 765,686,000

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This Information Statement dated May 3, 2018, is being furnished to the stockholders. of record
of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 25, 2018 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

FaPil=ih = ata B A LEL S e

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) State the date, time and place of the meeting

Date May 25, 2018
Time : 10:00 a.m.
Place: Dario (formerly Balducci), G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

(b) Approximate date on which copies of the information statement are first to be sent fo the
security holders: :

May 3, 2018



ltem 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines. grants to a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in cértain instances, to wit: (1} in case any
amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and
restricting the rights. of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, lease,
exchange, transfer, mortgage or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate
property or assets; (3) in case of merger or consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds. in another corporation or business or for any purpose other than the primary
purpose; and (5) extension.or shortening of the term of corporate existence. .

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in
cases where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockhelder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing corporate actions proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the
corporation for the payment of the fair value of hisfits shares within 30 days after the date-on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such. period shall be deemed a
waiver of such right. If the proposed action “is. implemented, the corporation shall pay to a
stockholder surrendering his/its stock certificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholider unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days ‘after demanding payment for his. shares, a dissenting stockholder
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares,
failing which, his/its appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon
payment of the _purchése price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares to the

corporation.

From the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate
action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such
shares, including voting and dividend fights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the value of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights

shalt be restored.

None of the proposed corporate actions gualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under Title X of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines.



ltem 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is
involved or had-a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

(b) No Director has informed the Company of his opposition to any matter to be acted upon.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Securities and Principal Holders. T.hereof

(aj GMA. Holdings, Inc. (“the Company”) has 10,000 common shares subscribed and
outstanding as of March 31, 2018. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each common share held as of the established record date. : .

(b) All stockholders of record as of the closing of business. on April 25, 2018 are entitled to
notice of and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockhalders’ Meeting.

(c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares
for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected -
or he may distribute them: on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit: provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be

elected.

(d) The following are the information on security ownership- of certain record and beneficial
owners and management:

Security Ownership of Certain :Recdrd and Beneficial Owners as of March 31, 2018

As of March 31, 2018, the following persons owned at least 5% of the Company’s outstanding
common shares: ' :

- Title of Name, Address of Name of Beneficial | Citizenship No, of Percent-
class Record Owner and : Owner and. Shares age of
Relationship with “Relationship with Held Class
Company - Record Owner
Common | Felipe L. Gozon The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30
GMA Network Center, - | the Beneficial Owner
EDSA corner Timog
Avenue, Diliman .
Common. | Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. GMA | The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30
Network Center, EDSA the Beneficial Owner
corner Timog Avenus,
Ditiman




Gommon | Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez The Regord-owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30
| GMA Network Center, the Beneficial Qwner
.EDSA corner Timog
. Avenue, Diliman | ‘
s Total 9,990 99.90

Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit,

stockholders of the Com

Security Ownership of

As. of March 31, 2018,
96,996 common shares

pany.

Management as of March 31, 2018:

Jr. énd Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez are significant

the Company's directors and senior officers owned an aggregate of

of the Company,

outstanding common capital stock.

equivalent to 99.96% of the Company's issued and

Title of Name of _ Amountand | Citizenship Percentage
Class Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
' Beneficial
' Ownership
Common ‘Felipe: L. Gozon Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330 '
“Common | Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Direct Filipino 33.30
_ : 3,330
Common Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
_ 3,330
Common " Arterio V. Panganiban Direct Filipino 04
4
- Common Jaime C. Laya Direct Filipino .01
. ' 1
Common | Félipe S. Yalong Direct Filipino .01
. | 1
"~ Total 99,996 99,96

Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is not aware of any person holding more {

or similar arrangement.

Changes in Contro!

The Company is not aware of any arrangemen

- of the Company during t

he pefiod covered by this report.
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Foreign Equity

The Company’s equity (consisting of common shares) are wholly-owned by Filipinos. While the
PDRs. issued by the Company may be owned by any person regardless of citizenship or
nationality, the exercise of which is subject to the nationality restriction under the Philippine
Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass media companies. As a resul, the
Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. common shares) resulting from an exercise of the
PDRs may only be issued to Philippine citizens. of corporations, cooperalives or associations
wholly owned and managed by Philippine citizens. Although- holders of PDRs will enjoy
economic rights: upon occurrence of certain events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they
will not have any voting rights in respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until
exercise of the PDR, be retained and exercised by GHI or the Company. Pending exercise of
the PDRs, the Shares: deliverable on exercise of the PDRs shall be owned by and registered in
the name of the Issuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged by
the Issuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held to the order and forthe: benefit of the Holders as
security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant to the Pledge. Untit
an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying: the relevant PDR, will retain.

and exercise such voting rights relating to such Shares.

Item 5. Directors and Executive. Offi'cers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors
The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2018-2019):

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban (Independent Director)

All the nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with. the. nominated independent

directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

The Company’s By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shall be
submitted inwriting to the Nomination Committee before the date of the reguiar annual meeting
of the stockholders. The Nomination Committee has. reviewed the qualifications of the.

nominees and approved the final list of candidates.



The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom are independent. The directors have a term of one year
and are elected annually at the Company’s stockholders meeting. A director who is elected to
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his. predecessor. As of April 30,
2018, the Company's Board of Directors and Seriior Management were composed of the

following:

Board of Directbrs_ — Senior Management
. ' Year - Year
Directors and ‘ Position | Position
Senior Nationality| Position ' ' -~ Position - Age
Management was was
{Assumed _ Assumed
. . Chaitman/
Felipe L. Gozon Filipino | pirector 2007 | N/A N/A 78
Gilberto R. - | - President/Chief '
Duavit, Jr. Filipino __Dlrector 2007 | gyecutive Officer 2007 | 54
Joel Marcelo G} gjjiping | Director 2007 | N/A NA | 54
Jimenez :
Chief Financial
. I | Corporate: : Officer/Chief .
Felipe S. Yalong Filipino | Traasurer 2007 Operating Officer 2012 | 61
Artemio V. | E— - Independent .
Panganiban Filipino | pyector ‘-2_009 N/A N/A | 81
. _ Independent !
Jaime C. Laya Filipino | piector 2008 | N/A N/A 79
_ I . Comptroller/Chief
Ronaldo P. Mastrili|  Filipino | N/A N/A | accounting Officer 2007 | 52
Anna Teresa M. I Corporate
Gozon Flhpmo_ Secretary 2007 | N/A - N/A 46
|Roberto Rafael V. | Vice-
oberto Ralael V. | gijipino  § NIA N/A | President/Compliance | 2013 | 61
Luila : Officer

The following are descriptions of the business experience of each of the Company's directors,

officers and senior management:
9




Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 78 years oid, ié the Chairman. of the Board of Directors and Chief
Exacutive Officer of GMA Network, Inc. ‘

Atty. Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Eima Parel Asuncion & Lucila.
He is also the Chairman of the Board/President/CEQ of various companies including GMA
Holdings, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing & Productions, Inc., RGMA Network, Inc., Alta
Productions Group, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc., Media Merge Corporation, Digify, Inc., RGMA
Marketing & Productions, inc., Philippine Entertainment Portal, Inc., Script2010, Inc., FLG
Management and Development Corporation, Gozon Development Corporation, Vista Montana
Realty Development, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corporation, BGE Holdings, Inc.,
Kenobe, Inc., Jeata Holdings and Management, Inc., Vitezon, Inc., Palawan Power Generation,
inc., Catanduanes Power Generation, Inc., Sycamore International Shipping Corp., Lex Realty,
inc., Justitia Realty & Management Corp., Gozon Foundation, Inc., GMA Kapuso Foundation,
Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation, Inc., and The Potter and Clay Christian School Foundation,

inc.

Atty. Gozon is also a Director of GMA Worldwide, Inc., GMA Films, Inc., Antipolo Agri-Business
& Land Dev. Corp., and Chamber of Commerce of the Philippine Islands. He is a Trustee of the
Philippine Center for Entrepreneurship Foundation, inc., and Environmental Heroes Foundation,
Inc. He is also an Advisory Board Member of the Asian TV Awards (2010 to present).

Alty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievements in law, media, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (19921}, Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1993), CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur —
Phiiippines (2004) by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), People of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005), Outstanding Manilan Award in the field of Social
Responsibility and Broadcasting given by the City Government of Manila (2011), Quezon City
Gawad Parangal Most Outstanding Citizen for 2011 given by the City Government of Quezon
(2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011), Lifetime Achievement
Award given by the UP Alumni: Association (2012), Certificate of Recognition given by the Civil-
Aeronautics Board (2012), Personality of the Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
International Makati (2013), Outstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UP Chapter
(International. Honor Sodiety) (2013), Visionary Management CEOQ Award given by BizNews
Asia (2013), Lifetime. Achievement Award given by UP Preparatory High School Alumini (2014),
Entrepreneurship Excellence Award and Best Broadcast CEO Award given by BizNews Asia
(2014), The Rotary Golden Wheel Award for Corporate Media Management given by Rotary
International District 3780 and Quezon City Government (2014), and Global Leadership Award
for Excellence in Media Sector {first Filipino to win the award) given by The Leaders
International together with the American Leadership Development Association in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia (2015). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 to 2010).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines {among

the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admitted to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinatior-]s,
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Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 54 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of
the GMA Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since 1999 and is currently the
Chairman of the Network's Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the
Chairman of the Board of GMA Network Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. He also serves
as President and CEO of GMA Holdings, Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film
Experts, Inc., and Dual Management and Investments, Inc. He is the President and a Director
of Group Management and Development, Inc.; President and Director of MediaMerge Corp.,
Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New
Media, Inc., Alta Productions. Group, Inc., COptima Digital, Inc., and Mont-Aire Realty and
Development Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation,
Inc. and.a Trustee of the Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. and the HERO Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy from the. University of the Philippines.

Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 61 years old, is the  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of GMA Network, Inc. He is also the Head of the Corporate Services Group of the
Network. He has been a Director of the Company since 2002. Aside from GMA Network, Inc.,
he also serves as Director and Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and
GMA Network Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., and Majalco Finance and lnvestments,
Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, Inc., MediaMerge Corp.; Executive Vice President
of RGMA Marketing and Productions, 1ne.: and Corporate Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of

GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc..
Yalong was named CFO of the Year by ING FINEX in 2013.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration Major in. Accounting from
the Philippine School of Business Admiristration and completed the Management Development
Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 79 years old, has been an independent Directar of GMA Network, inc.
since 2007. He is the Chairman and President of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank),
Director of Ayala Land, 1nc., Manila Water Company, Inc., Philippine AXA Life Insurance
Company, Inc., and Charter Ping An Insurance Corporation. He also serves as Chairman of
‘Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc. and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of
st. Paul University - Quezon City, Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum of
Manila, Yuchengco Museum, Fundacién Santiago, Inc., Ayala Foundation, Inc., and other
organizations. He writes a-weekly column for the Manila Bulletin.

He was Minister of Budgst, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984;
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. In 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public
Accountants and Management Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
International; he served as the firm's Chairman until his retirement in 2004.

fippines, 1957; M.S. in Industrial

He earned his BSBA, magna cum jaude, University of the Phi
Financial Management, Stanford

Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1960; Ph.D. in’
University, 1966. Heis.a Certified Public Accountant.
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Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 81 years old, has been an Independent
Director of GMA Netwark, inc. since 2007. in 1095, he was named a Justice of the Supreme
Court and in 2005, he was appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines — a position he held until
December 2008. At present, he is also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First
Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific Investments Corp., . Manila Electric Company,
Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co., Petron
Corporation, Asian Terminals, and a. regular Director of Jollibee Foods. Corporation. He is also
an Adviser of Metropolitan Bank and Bank of the Philippine islands (BPI), Chairman, Board of
Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Adviser of Double Dragon Properties, Chairman of the
Board of the Foundation for Liberty and Prosperity, President of the Manila Cathedral Basilica
Foundation, Chairman Emeritus of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, inc., and-Member,
Advisory Board of the World Bank (Philippines) and of the Asian Institute of Management

Corporate Govetnance Council. Recently, he was named a Member of the Permanent Court of

Arbitration based in The Hague, Netherlands. He also.is a column writer of The Philippine Daily
Inquirer. - ' .

Upon his retirement, he was. unanimously conferred a Plague of Acclamation by the Associate
Justices of the Supreme. Court.as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award
of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic
leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and. youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar
groups, religious movements and other non-government organizations, both local and
international. '

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and “Most Outstanding Student’ hanors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who. took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise.
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various universities.

Anna Teresa M. Gozon, Filipino, 46 years old, has been 2 Director of GMA Network, Inc. since
2000. She graduated valedictorian from grade school and high school at Colegio San Agustin.
She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila University and
obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines where she
graduated valedictorian, cum laude. - She later obtained her Master of Laws from Harvard

University.

She is a junior partner in Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and is an Associate
Professor in the University of the Philippines, Coliege of Law where she taught Taxation and
l.egal History.

She is currenﬁy Programming Consultant to the Chairman/CEQO of GMA Network, Inc. and the
President of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. She is a trustee of GMA Kapuso
Foundation. ‘ :

Ronaldo. P. Mastrili, Filipino, 52 years old, is the Senior Vice President of GMA Network, Inc.’s.
Finance and ICT Departments. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Business and
Economics Degree, Major in Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master
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in Business Administration Program from the same university and completed the Executive
Devalopment Program. of the Asian Institute of Management. He js a Certified Public
Accountant with expertise in the fields of accounting, auditing, finance, taxation and general
management. He was formetly the Assistant Vice President of Controllership of ABS-CBN and
also served. as its Group Internal Auditor before joining GMA Network in March 2001. He also
worked with SGV and Co. in the early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently holds key
positions in GMA. Subsidiaries namely: Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA Holdings,
Treasurer of Alta Productions, Director of Script2010 and GMA Kapuso Foundation, and
Comptroller of GMA Films, GMA Kapuso Foundation and GMA Worldwide. ‘

Roberto Rafae!l V. Lucila, Filipino, 61 years old, has been the Corporate Secretary of GMA
Network, Inc. since March 27, 2017. He is a co-managing partner/senior partner of the Law
Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuneion & Lucita. He currently sits as director in the Philippine
 affiliates. of certain European and American companies in the Philippines namely, eMerchant

Asia Inc., eMerchant Pay Asia Inc., Evonik (Philippines) Inc., Time-Life International (Phil.) Inc.
and MeteoGroup Philippines Inc. as well as a member of the Board of Regents of the Bicol
University. He is the Chairman and President of Lucilex, Inc. and the President of Assetlex
Development Corporation, Inc., eMerchant Asia inc., and aMerchant Pay Asia Inc.. He is a
Court of Appeals Mediator and serves as a Trainor for the Court of Appeals Mediation Training
Program. He is presently a lecturer for Constitutional Law at the University of the Philippines,
College of Law and the University of Asia and the Pacific, School of Law and Government. He
was also a lecturer at the University of the Philippines College of Business Administration, San
Sebastian College Institute of Law and Lyceum College of Law as well as in local and
international conferences such as the Integrated Bar of the Philippines (IBP) Nationai
Convention in 2010, Avenue Capital Global Investor Conference in 2005, and The Law
Association for Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA) Conference in 1997. He was OIC for the
Lega! Department of GMA Network, Inc. from 2001 to 2004 and Office of the President of
Express Telecommunications, Inc. in 1098, He represented the Avenue Asia Capital Group and
Avenue Capital Group as member of the Board of Directors of Citra Metro Manila Tollway

Corporation (CMMTC) from 2004 thru 2012.

He served in the Office of the President of the Philippines as Assistant Executive Secretary for
Legislation from 1990 to September 1992; Chairman of the Presidential Staff in 1991; Chairman
of the Philippine Retirement Authority from 1991 to August 1992; Chairman of the South China
Sea Fishery Disputes Committee from 1991 to July 1992; and Board Member of the Special
Operations Team. (now Bases Conversion Development Authority [BCDA])in 1991. In the
Department of Transportation and Communications, he was a Board Member of the Civil
Aeronautics Board from 1990-1991 and of the Philippine National Railways from 1989-1991.

He holds Bachelor of Laws (1980) and Bachelor of Arts in Psychology (1976) degrees from the
University of the Philippines. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. -He has compieted
the Strategic Business Economics Program (SBEP) from the University of Asia and the Pacific
in 1999. He has contributed legal articles for the Supreme Court Reports Annotated (SCRA),
The Lawyer’'s Review, IBP Law Journal and Magazine, World Bulletin, Getting the Deal Done,
and the Clifford Chance’s «psia-Pacific Guide to Restructuring and [nsolvency Practices

Philippine Chapter” 2013 and 2018, and was the author of the baok entitled “Corporate

Rehabilitation in the Philippines.” Atty. Lucila has been recognized as one of the 2013 Asialaw

Asia-Pacific Leading Lawyers in Dispute Resolution, and as a law professional actively engaged
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in the areas of Technology Media Telecommunications (TMT) and Insolvency in the
Fhilippines. '

He served in the Office of the President of the Philippines as Assistant Executive Secretary for
L egistation from 1990 to September 1992; ‘Chairman of the Presidential Staff in 199%; Chairman
of the Philippine Retirement Authority from 1991 to August 1992; Chairman of the South China
Sea Fishery Disputes. Committee from 1991 to July 1992; and ‘Board Member of the Special
Operations Team (now Bases Conversion Development Authority [BCDA]) in 1891. In the
Department of Transportation and Communications, he was a Board Member of the Civil
Aeronautics Board from 1990-1991 and of the Philippine National Railways from 1989-1991. -

He holds Bachelor of Laws (1 980) and Bachelor of Arts in Psychology (1976) degrees from the
University of the Philippines. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. He has completed
the Strategic Business Economics Program (SBEP) from the University of Asia and the Pacific
in 1099. He has contributed legal articles for the. Supreme Court Reports Annotated (SCRA},
The Lawyer's Review, 1BP Law Journal and Magazine, World Bulletin, and Getting the Deal
Through, and was the author of the book entitled “Corporate Rehabilitation in the Philippines.”
Atty. Lucila has been recognized as one of the 2013 Asialaw Asia-Pacific Leading Lawyers in
Dispute Resolution, and as a law professional actively engaged in the areas of Technology
Media Telecornmunications (TMT) and Insolvency in the Philippines.

Significant Employees

Although the Company will conti_hue to rely on the individual and collective contributions of their
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particular employee.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon's sister, Carolina L.
Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G, Jimenez.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, during the past five years and up to the date of this
Information Statement, there. has been no-occurrence of any of the following events which are
material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company:

« Any filing of an insolvency or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which
such person was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the

insolvency or within two years prior to that time;

« Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic. or foreign, of any such person, excluding traffic
violations and other minor-offenses;
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e Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent

jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily

- enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business,
securities, commodities, or banking activities; and

» Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, of a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,

for violation of a securities of commodities law.

Resignation of Directors
No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the

date of the initial arganization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on
matters relating to the Company’s. operations, policies and practices.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Compary engaged as its legal counsel Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion
& Lucila (“BGEPAL"} where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Partner. Atty. Gozon is the
Chairman and ohie of the major stockholders of the Gompany. The Company and BGEPAL are
currently negotiating the fees in relation to the services provided, ensuring that the same is

done on an arm’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company’s Initial
Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remitted to these Selling Shareholders.
Please see Note 10-of the Company’s Financial Statements.

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material fransactions during the past two
years, nor is any material transaction presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the
registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms
of material transactions that may not be availsed from other, more clearly independent parties on

an arm's length basis.

ltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive_ Officers

‘ Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers.

The following sets forth the summary of the Company’s compensation to its executive officers:

Name and Position
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and Chief Executive Officer

Felipe S. Yalong Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Officer
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Ronaldo P. Mastrili Chief Accounting Officer/ Comptrolier

Year Salaries Bonuses Other Total
(in (in Income (in
thousands) thousands) thousands)
CEQ and the highest
compensated officers named , 2015 - - oo- -
above
2016 - ‘ - : - -
2017 - - - -
2018 - - - -
(estimate)

Aggregate compensation paid to
all officers and directors as a 2015 -

group unnamed
2016 - - - .

2017 | - - - -
2018 ) ) i
(estimate) ' '

No director or officer receives oF has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides. that each director is: entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and ailocate an amount of not more than 10% of the net
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and appottioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the

stockholders.

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing
directors and officers aside: from the compensation received as herein stated.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-control Arrangements

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are elected to
their respective positions on a yearly basis. The Company has no. compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect o any executive officer that would result from the resignation,
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer’s employment.

Iltem 7. %ndependentzPublicAccountants

(a) SyCip Gorres Velayo. & Co. {"SGV & Co.") has acted as the Company’s external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is. being recommended for re-election at the scheduled

Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 25, 2018.

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed
fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. They will

16




have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and aré expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

The Company became publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,
2007. Pursuant.to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (iv), the Company has engaged Ms. Marydith
C. Miguel, partner of SGV & Co., to sign the Company's 2017 audited financial

statements.

(c) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

The. Company has not had any disagreements,on-accounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any

subsequent interim period.

(d) SGV & Co. professional fees billed for its year-end financial audit of the Company
covering fhe years 2017 -and 2016. The Company acerued audit fee of Seventy-Five
Thousand Pesos (P75,000) for year 2017 which is the same fee with year 2016. These
included the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No

other fees of any nature were paid.

(e) The Company’s Audit Committee was formed in 2008. The Audit Committee reviews the
fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same fo the Board of

Directors.

The members of_. the Audit Committee are as follows:

Dr. Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban
Felipe S. Yalong (Corporate Treasurer)

item 8.Compénsation Pians

No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES
ltem 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action shall be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities
otherwise than for .exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.
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ltem 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

No action shall be taken with respect to the modification of any class of sacurities of the
Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the
Company in exchange: for outstanding securities of another class.

item 11. Financial and Other Information

in connection with ltem 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule. 68 of the Securities

and Regulation Code:

2. Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2016 and 2017;
b. Managements Discussion.and Analysis or plan of operation; and
c. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of
securities and dividends paid: out, and corporate governance
Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken with respect to. the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and similar
matters.

jtem 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.

item 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the. restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account
of the Company.

D, OTHER MATTERS
item 15. Action with Respect fo_..Reports
a. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial

Statements for the year ending December 31, 2017.
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b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on August 18,
»017. The salient matters are summarized as follows: :

(1) Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Meeting held on September

30, 2016.
(2) Reportof the President
(3) Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the Previous Year
(4). Election -of Directors, including the Independent Directors
(5) Election of the External Auditor

c. Ratification of Acts of the Board 61’. Directors for the previous year

All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for the period
covering August 18, 2017 to May 25, 2018 adopted in the ordinary course of

business involving _
> Approval of berrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appoeintment of signatories;
"> Approval of the minutes. of the organizational meeting jast September

30, 2017 :
> Approvalof the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements

ltem 16. Matters Not Required -to.:be Submitted

All actions or matters to be submitted in the meeting will require the vote of the security holders.

ltem 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

No action is to be taken with respect to any amendment of the registrant's charter, by-laws or other
documents.

[tem 18. Other Proposed Action

(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers:

(i) Declaration on April 5, 2018 by the Company of cash distribution to the PDR
holders of Php of Php 0.50 per share or the same dividend rate that will be paid
by GMA Network, Inc. to its common, shareholders, undiminished by the PDR
holders’ proportionate share. in the operating. cost of GMA Holdings, Inc.. The
foregoing -cash distribution in. the amount -of Php 0.50 per PDR shall be
distributed to the PDR holders as of April 19, 2018 and will be paid out to the

PDR holders on May 16, 2018.
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(i) Declaration on March 27, 2017 by the Company of cash distribution to the
PDR holders of Php 0.73 per PDR or the same dividend rate that will be paid by
GMA Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR
holders’ proportionate share in the operating. cost of GMA Holdings, Inc. The
foregoing cash. distribution in the amount of Php 0.73 per PDR shall be
distributed to the PDR Holders as of April 20, 2017 and will be paid out to the
PDR holders on May 16, 2017; - :

() = Declaration on April 8, 2016 by the Company of cash distribution to the
PDR holders of P0.40 per PDR or the same dividend rate that was paid by GMA
Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’
proportionate share in the operating cost of GMA Holdings, Inc. The foregoing
cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR was distributed to PDR Holders
as of April 25, 2016 and paid out t the PDR holders on May 17, 2016;

(ii) All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering August 18, 2017 to May 25, 2018 adopted in the ordinary

course of business involving -
> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last August 18,

2017 : ,
> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements

(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year

(c) Election of the External Auditor

Item 19. Voting Procedures

(a) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares

of the Company’s commeon stock present and/or represented and entitied to vote. However,
under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-
cumulative, except as to the election of directors.

(b) Method: Straight. and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5) nominges
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as
he shall see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to be elected.
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If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot. If there are only
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands. :

The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by secret ballot. The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of

the meeting shall likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or
otherwise in any way of the matters to Be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not
received any information that an. officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to

be taken at the Annual Stockholders” Meeting.

Upon written- request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholder with a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a
copy of the SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed to the following: :

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City

Attention: Ronaldo P. Mastrili
Chief Accounting Officer

Copies of the latest Unaudited Interim Financial Statements (IF8) will be made available
to each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual Meeting. Such
report can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard copies of the
company’s IFS and management discussion may be available upon request five (5)
calendar days before the said meeting. This notice shall be published in two (2)
newspapers of general circulation five {5) days before the meeting.
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SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the
information set forth in this report is frue, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of

Makati on W:} 77,2018
GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

% B 7/

ANNA TERESA M. GOZON
Corporate Secretary

By:
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

l. Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a
holding Company, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire own, hold, -
use, seil, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited to stocks, bonds and debentures. The Company

has no subsidiaries.

The Philippine. Deposit Receipts (“PDRs") issued by the Company were listed with the -
Philippine Stock Exchange {“PSE”) on July 30, 2007, _

GHI does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the
PDRs relating to the GMA. Network, Inc. common shares (“Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under the PDRs and the
acquisition and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRs, which includes
maintaining the fisting with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees

The Company had no full-time employees as of March 31, 2018 and does not anticipate in
hiring any employees within the next 12 months. No labor unions are present within the

Company.
I, Properties.

The Company does not own any real property. The Company does not lease any real property
and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months.

1. Legal Proceedings

23



The Company is net, and has not been, a party to any legal proceeding:

V. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholdei‘ Matters

Market Information

The Company first offered PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares on July 30,
2007. These PDRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date.

Pe‘riod in Highest Lowest

2017 - Closing Closing
1Q 6.10 - 5.83
2Q 6.34 5.69
3Q : 6.05 5.74
4Q 5.78 5.39

The Company's. Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Philippine Stock
Exchange since 2007. The price information. as of the close of the latest practicable trading
date, Aprii 30, 2018 is P 5.45 for- GMAP (PDRS).

Holders

The total number of shareholders as of March 31, 2018 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of March 31, 201 8 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. All the common shareholders of

are listed hereunder:

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Subscribed Percentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon ‘ 3,330 33.30
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. : 3,330 33.30
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez 3,330 33.30
Artemio V. Panganiban 4 04
Manue! P. 4 .04
Quiogue(deceased)

Jaime C. Laya 1 .01
Felipe 8. Yalong 1 01
Total 10,000 100.00

Dividend Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable
at such times and in sueh amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
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shall determine. The declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at
loast two-thirds .of the outstanding. capital stock, No dividend which will impair the capital of the

Company shall be declared.

Distribution of GMA Network, Inc: Cash Dividends to the Company’s PDR Holders

On April 5, 2018 the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of Php 0.50 per
share or the same. dividend rate that will be paid by GMA Network, Inc. fo its commaon,
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders® propertionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc.. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php 0.50 per PPR shall
he distributed to the PDR holders as of April 19, 2018 and will be paid out to the PDR holders

on May 16, 2018.

On March 27, 2017, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of Php 0.73
per share or the samse dividend rate that will be paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common;,
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc.. The: foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php: 0.73 per PDR shall
be distributed to the PDR holders as. of April 20, 2017 and will be paid out to the PDR holders

on May 16, 2017.

On April 8, 20186, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of PQ.40 per
PDR or the same. dividend rate that was paid by GMA Network, Inc. to Its common
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR was
distributed to PDR Holders as of April 25, 2016 and was paid eut to the PDR holders on May

17, 2016.

On August 25, 2015, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of
record as of April 24, 2015. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231.53 million to all shareholders of record
as of April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014.

Cash Dividends to Gommaon. Shareholders

On April 5, 2018, the BOD approved the Company's declaration and distribution of Php
3,100,000.00 cash dividends from the retained earnings of the Company as of December 31,
2016 and will be paid out to the Company’s commons stockholders on or before May 16, 2018.

On March 27, 2017, the BOD approved the Company’'s declaration and distribution of Php

1,000,000.00 cash dividends from the retained earnings of the Company as of December 31,
2016 and will be paid out to the Company’'s commons siockholders on or before May 9, 2017.
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On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and. distribution. of Php 600
thousand dividends from the ratained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015 and -
was paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016.

On August 25, 2015, the BOD -ap_provéd the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php 500
thousand from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015. This was paid
out to the Company’s common stockholders on October 21, 2015.

The company has no dividend declaration in 2014 and 2013.

The Company has not and will not ehgage in any other business Or purpose except in relation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying Common Shares for as long as the PDRs

are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses. then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding year. Amounts remaining in
excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, inc.
any distribution in respect of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of
Common Shares, the Company shall grant additional PDRs 10 holders in respect of such

distributions.

Whenever the Company shall receive of become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities {other than Common Shares) orin other property (other than cash)
in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure
delivery of such securities or pther property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the order of
the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s.ability to pay dividends on common equity.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has ocourred within the past three
years. ! . :

V. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the
Company that are incorporated into this information Statement by reference. Such Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

(PFRS).

As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any other
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying
GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.
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Any cash dividends of other cash distributions distributed -in respect of Common Shares
received by the Company {or the Pledge Trustee on its ‘behalf) shall be applied toward the
operating expenses. then due {including but not limited to applicable taxes, fees and
maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company (the “Operating
Expenses”) for the current and preceding year (as certified by an independent. auditor). A
further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year (as certified by an
independent. auditor) (the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR Issuer) shall be distributed to Holders. pro rata on. the first Business Day after such
cash dividends are received by the Company.

On March 27, 2017, the Company's BOD approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of
P0.73 per PDR totaling to P595.24 million to all shareholders of record as of April 20, 2017. On
the same date, the BOD also approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash.
dividends. received from GMA without deducting the Company’s 2017 projected operating
expenses. The dividends were remitted to the PDR holders on May: 16, 2017

On April 8, 2016, the Company's BOD approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of
P0.40 per PDR totaling to p338.54 million to all shareholders of record as of April 25, 2016. On
the same date, the BOD alsoc approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash
dividends received from GMA without deducting the Company’s 2016 projected operating
expenses. The dividends were remitted to the PDR holders on May 17, 2016.

On March 30, 2015, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25
per PDR totaling P211.75 million fo all shareholders of record as at April 24, 2015. On the same
date, the BOD also. approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash dividends
received from GMA without deducting the Company's 2015 projected operating expenses. The
dividends were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company's key performance indicators. are focused on the dividends it receives to meet
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents Jevels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year's operation.

Results of Operations of GMA Holdings Inc.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

GMA Hoaldings Inc. ended the: year with a total comprehensive income amounting to P2.77
million, 164% higher than' last year's total comprehensive income of P1.05M, due to higher
oxercise fees of P2.80 million generated from the -conversion of 62,722,000 PDR shares tc
common shares as compared to P508 thousand exercise fees from 11,387,000 PDR shares
converted in 2016. Likewise, net ingome after tax grew to P3.03 million, an increase of P2.00
million from last year's net income after tax of P1.03 million. This year's revenues reached
P4,72 million, an improvement of 88% or P2.21 million from last year’s level of P2.51 million-
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mainly brought about by the increase in exercise fees as mentioned earlier. Interest income,
however, declined to P1.92 million in 2017 versus P2.00 million in 2016 due to lower interest

income earned on gash placement.

Operating experises for the year 2017 totaled P1.11 million vis-a-vis P1.06 million in 2016
mainly due io the increase in professional fees to P518 thousand versus P383 thousand in
2016. Local business tax went up to P35 thousand from fast year's P32 thousand due to higher
2016 tax base used in assessing the 2017 business tax payment. On the other hand, listing
fees amounted to P498 thousand, o decrease of 19% as compared with P614 thousand in 2016

due to the offshoot of lower market cap.

On April 5, 2018, the Board of Directdrs approved the cash dividend of P3.10 million to be paid
1o the common stockholders from the retained earnings of the Company as of December 31,

2017.

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P50.51 million, higher by 4%. than last year's
P48.71 million primarily due to the increase in cash and cash equivalents, on account of interest
received from Unicapital cash. placement and Available-for-sale (AFS) investment. Receivables

also increased subsequient to higher exercise fees.

For the vears ended -Decembef 31. 2016 and 2015

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year 2016 with a total comprehensive income amounting to P1.05
million, a reversal from previous. year's' P91 thousand total comprehensive loss due to 2016
unrealized gain on Available-for-sale (AFS). investment of P20 thousand, brought about by
changes in its fair value. Likewise, net income after tax amounted fo P1.03 millien, an increase
of P397 thousand from 2015 net income after tax of P635 thousand mainly due to higher
revenues coupled with lower operating expenses. Revenues for 2016 reached P2.51 million, an
improvement of 17% or P363 thousand from previous year's level of P2.14 million mainly
brought about by the increase in exercise fees. generating P508 thousand from the conversion
of 11,387,000 PDR shares to.common shares compared with P89 thousand from the 1,995,900
PDR shares converted during the same period of 2015. Interest income, however, declined o
P2 00 million in 2016 versus P2.05 million in 2015 due to lower interest income earned on ¢ash.

placement.

Operating expenses for the year 2016 totaled P1.06 million. vis-a-vis P1.09 million in 2015
mainly. due to the decrease in professional fees to P308 thousand versus P400 thousand in
2015. On the other hand, listing fees amounted to P614 thousand, an increase of 7% as
compared with P576 thousand in 2015 due to the offshoot of higher market cap. Local business
tax went up to P32 thousand from previous year's P20 thousand-due to higher 2015 tax base

used for 2016 payment.

On March 27, 2017, the Board of Directors approved the Company’s cash dividend declaration
of P1.00 million to its common stockholders from the retained earnings of the Company as of

December 31, 2016.

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.71 million, a tad higher than P48.22 million
in 2015, primarily due to the increase in accounts receivable caused by more conversjon of

PDR shares to comman shares in 2016.
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For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 20714

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year 2015 with a pre-tax income of P1 .05 million, an increase of
P443 thousand from 2014 pre-tax income of P607 thousand mainly due to higher revenues
despite higher operating expenses. Likewise, net income: after tax amounted to P635 thousand
versus P350 thousand netincome after tax in 2014. Revenues in 2015 reached P2.14 million,
an improvemént of 30% of P490 thousand from 2014 level of P1.65 million mainly brought
about by the climb in interest income of P2.05 million. For 2015, a total of P2.00 million PDR
shares were converted {0 common shares which generated exercise fees of P89 thousand vis-
a-vis P9.16 million PDR shares in 2014, for an exercise fee of P409 thousand. '

Operating expenses inched up by 5% to P1.09 million from P1.05 million in 2014 due fo higher
professional fees. parfly negated by lower PSE listing feés and miscellaneous ‘expenses.
Professional fees settled at P400 thousand, 95% more than the P205 thousand posted in 2014
which included payment to BGE for the. amendment of Articles of Incorporation. On the other
hand, listing fees of P576 thousand dropped by 17% from P690 thousand in 2014 as an

offshoot of lower market cap.

On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the companys declaration and distribution of .P600
thousand dividends from the retained earnings. of the corporation as of December 31, 2015.
These were paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016.

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.52 million, a tad lower from P48.91 million in
2014, primarily due- {0 the decrease in the fair market value. of Available-for-sale investment

(under non-current asset).

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

i. Trends, demands, commitments, events. or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer's liquidity..

As of December 31, 2017, there were no known trends, demands, commitments,
events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

ii. Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company; including any default-or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2017, there were no events which may trigger a direct or
contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company.

iit. Material off-balance shest ‘transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangemehts, obligations (including

contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created as of December 31, 2017.
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v, Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for-such expenditures.

For the period January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017, there were no material
commitments for capital expenditures. =

V. Any known frends, events of uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected fo have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

The Company’s results of operations'depend largely on its ability to meet PDR
holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash
equivalents levels to meet its obligations with respect to the Company’s current and
preceding year's operation. As of December 31, 2017, there were no known trends,
gvents or uncertainties that are reasonably expacted to have a material favorable or
unfavorable impact on net sales/revenuesfincome from continuing operations.

M. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s
continuing operations.

As of December 31, 2017, there were no significant. elements of income or logs that
did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

vil. Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Statements of Finaricial Position (December 31, 2017 vs. December 31, 2016)°

« Current assets increased by P2.05 miltion to P29.93 million, mainly as a result of
the increase in cash and cash equivalents, on account of interest received from
Unicapital cash ptacement and AFS investment.

e Current liabilities increased by P20 thousand to P47.70 million due to unpaid
iabilities for trust fees.

viii. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations.

As of December 31, 2017, there are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect
on the financial condition or results of operations.

INTERIM PERIODS

Copies of the latest unaudited Interim Financial Statements will be made available to
each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual Meeting. Such report
can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard copies of the
company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upon request and shall be
published in a news paper of general circulation five (5) calendar days before the said
meeting. This notice shail be published in two (2) newspapers of general circulation five

(5) days before the meeting.
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V1. Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best practices. in corporate governance. The,
Company has adopted a Revised Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the
Company’s adherence to these principles. This Revised Manua! clearly sets out the principles
of good management and defines the specific responsibilities of the Board, the Board
Committees, and management within the over-all governance framework.

The Revised Manual sets out the principles of good,'management and defines the specific
responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-all

governance framework.

The Revised Manual conforms. to the requirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission and covers policies, among others:

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee); {(c) independent
auditors, (d) internal audit, {e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, {g) monitoring and assessment, and (h} penalties for non-compliance.

To ensure adherence to corporate governance, the Boarc designated a Compliance Officer. The
Compliance Officer is responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the. provistons and
reguirements of good corporate-governance.

Based on the Revised Manual on Corporate Governance Manua! (attached to the Company's lefter to the
Securities and Exchange Commission dated May 22, 2017) as well as'the Company's Annual Corporate
Governance Report for 2016 filed with the Seourities and Exchange Commission, there have been no
- deviations from the Company’s Manual as of date.

Vil,  Financial Statements

Kindly see attached Audited Financial Statements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC. .

‘ N%f’ A}@i’gne_d this 5™ day of April 2013.

Unit 5-D Towe

ANNEXA

ST ATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY. -
A POR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

Secusities and Exchange Commission
G/F Secretariat Building

P1CC Complex, Roxas Boulevard
pasay City, 1307

The management of GMA Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements, including the schedules attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2017 ‘and
2016, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework. indicated therein, and for such.
internal control as management determines 18 necessary to enable the preparation of financial statefnents
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. -

In preparing the financial statements, manageinent is responsible for assessing the Company’s. ability’ 10 -
continue as a going concert, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concers and -using the going -

concem basis of accounting unless managemem-either-intends- to Jiquidate the Cornpany Of to cease aperations,
or has no realistic alternative but to.do so. s

‘The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporfing process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules attached

therein, and submits the same to the stockholders,

auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the finaneial

Phiiippine Standards on Auditing, and in their-report to the
pletion of such audit,

'SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent

statements of the compatty in accordance with
stockholders, have gxpressed their opinion on the faimness of presentation upon Cox

FELIPE L/GOZON
Chairman of the Board )

b

President and Chie

{PT 5. YALONG-
“Tief Financial Off

018, affiants éxhibited
zanj),,hSSS'No, 33-1841930 (Gilbeito
lipe 5. Yatong). )

JUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this
to me their Passport No. p3551628A issued on Jul. 3, 2017 (Fe.
R Duavit, Jr.), and Passport No. P2459589A issued on Mar, 27,2

KETY, VIHGILE R BATALLA.

Doc, No. 384 .
Page No. _¢A ’ ) : NOTARY PUBLI-FOR MAKATLCITY
Rook No. 3 8% ' AFROIE
Series of 2018
1§ 0. No. 7ot

476, CENTER
38, JUPITER

. GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
¢ One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonif
MAILING ADDRESS: GIMA Network Center, EDSA cor. Timog AVe., Diliman, Qués
" Jelephone No. (632) 982-7777 loc. 8001 Fax (632) 928-51
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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GMA Holdings, Inc.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Audifor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters, Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatementof the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

financial statements,

Fair Valuation of Investment in Unquoted Debt Security Classified as Available-for-Sale Investment

As at December 31, 2017, the Company has an available-for-sale (AFS) investment in an unquoted debt
security amounting to £20,570,501. The valuation of this investment is a key audit matter as it is material
to the financial statements, representing 41% of the Company’s total assets as at December 31,2017, and
‘ts vafuation involves the-exercise of Management’s judgment and the use of estimatés. The Company .
used the discounted cash flow model to value the investment, and the discount rates used were based on
the spot yieldicurve derived from government securities of different-tenors plus an estimate of the

counterparty’s credit spread. .

The Compaﬁ s disclosures on the fair value of the AFS investment are inciuded in Notes 8, 14 and 1510

the financial statements.

IS

Audit Response

We traced the terms (& g., principal amoust, interest rate, and repayment dates) used in the Compeany’s
d the inputsused in determining the discount rates

- valuation tosthe investment agreemetit.“We reviewe

 based on observable yields of benchmark government securities end credit rating of the counterparty. We
tested the mathematical accuracy. of the Company’s calculation. We also assessed the Company’s
disclosares on the fair value measurement of the AFS investment based on the requirements of PERS 13,

Fair Value Measurement.

. Other Information

is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information

g SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive nformation Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
ded December 31,2017, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s

EC Form 20-18 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual
017 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this

Management
included in th
for the year ©
report thereon. The S
Report for the year ended December 31, 2

auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does ot cover the other information and we will not express any

form of assur'ance conclusjon thereon.

13

lity is to read the other

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, Our responsibi
consider.whether the other

information ;.i:dentiﬁed above when it becomes available and, in d(?ingq?)\{:,“_ ¢
. . , N . . n . T b
information s materially inconsistent with the financiai statements or QUf

audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. LARGE TAAP
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Responsibilities of Management.and Those Charged with-Governance for the Financial Statements

.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatio:i of the financial statements in
PFRSs, and for.such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable

.accordance with
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

the preparation of finapcial statements that are
error. - ‘
In preparingithe financial staterhents; management is yesponsible for assessing the Company’s ability fo

continue as-a going concerm, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concers and using the
going concern basis of accountinig-uniess management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, orihas no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with govemnance are respdn‘sible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting proce?sl'

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our obj_ectivei; are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as & whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or erTof, and to issue an auditor’s report that
“includes o_ur;qlpinicm.- Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is niot a guarantee that an

audit conducted in-accordance with PSAs will always detect a imaterial misstatement when it exists.

- Misstatements can arise from fraud or error: and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econemic decisions of users taken on the
| ‘ 3

- basis of these|financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professionalfskepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Jdentify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o fraud
or error,ldesign and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate toprovide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

nent resulting fromy fraud-is higherthan jor one resulting from error, as fraud may involye

misstater
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, ‘misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Oblain understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are:af propriate in-the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivesess of the Company’s internal control.

‘s - Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates jand related disclosures made by management. .
" e Conclude|on the appropriateness of management’s US¢ of the going concern basis of accounting and,, -
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ot f
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability t0 continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s

report to ihe related disclosures in the financial statements @-}:;;i.ﬁzs.U-ahdisalosmm_in_@dmg_atﬁ,,_to

" modify oyr opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit eﬁiféii;@é#obzagnéq- i to ﬁhe‘d_a;t?,. of our
. e ok f R A e BRI T IRE AT S L SR
auditor’s teport, However, future events or conditions may gggout%g Gompany ig,ee8e {Lﬂ fantinte

as & going concern.
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the financial statements, including the '

e - Evaluatejthe overall presgn‘tati‘_on,,structu’re and content of the
& underlying transactions and eveats in a

disclosures; and whether;..theiﬂr‘_a_ancial"_sfateme'nts‘r’épr‘esénf'th
rmannerthat achieves fair presentation.

We communlcate with those‘c_harg‘ed with govemancq,regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the-audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control thatjwe identify during.our audit. .
We also prd*v ide those chargg‘d.-with'__governance with a statement.that we have complied with relevant
ethical requiements regarding‘-independence, and:to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that- may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related %

safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those malters that
were of mosysi gniﬁcanca--in@theﬂudit of the financial statemnents ofithe current pericd and are therefore
the key audit matters, We describe these matters in-our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes'pu blic disclosure aboutthematter .or'wheri,nin"eXti'efner.'raré.circumstamces, we determine that
a matter should not fbe-commUn'ica'ted]in our 'r.epoﬁ:because;the adyerse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected tc‘)-pu‘t\a‘/‘eigh‘the'public interest benefits of such communication. .

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 13 2010

- Qur audits were conductggl.fqggﬁhe;:;:.purpose.of--,fo;mi_ngfg_m-\ Qpiqionpn:ths_basiq financial statements taken
as a whol_e.~’;.T_he'ﬁﬁsupplem?’ntaify_-"in_f_(jnnat'iqr_xfrequip,e'dlxéndérRev.éﬁue_Regulations 15-2010 in Note 19 to
the financial statements is présented. for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not

‘ Jancial, fs." S;uch{;inforr_natib,ri is the responsibility of tae.
¢ information fas-been subjected to the auditing progcedures
In:our-opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all

_ management of-GMAHoldings, Ine. Th
applied in our audit of_the,basic'j-ﬂnag‘oial"state'me'n'ts:
material respects, in relation’to the basic financial statements taken as 4 whole. )

The eﬁgagement’paﬁner on -t_.he;audit‘-__resulting-in this. ind_epéndent auditor’s report is Belinda T. Beng Hul.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

T. ((-VVX Hin

Belinda T. Begng Hu |

Partnet , B ‘ \

CPA Certificate No. 88823 _

SEC Accredﬁtation No.‘0923 -AR-2 (Group A),
May 1, 2016, valid until May 1, 2019

Tax Identificetion No. 153-078-243

BIR Accrediation No. 08-001998-78-2015,
Fune 26,015, valid il June 25, 2018

PTR No. 662-[123 1, January 9, 2018, Makati City

ib

April 5,201 ,
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GMA HOIDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

. 2017 2016
" ASSETS
Current Assefs
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 7,-14.and 15) P28§,805,419 B26,888,153
Accounts receivable (Notes 14 and 15) 881,262 559,810 7
Input value-aqﬁded tax 248,277 441,598
Total Current Assets 29,934,958 27,885,561
‘Noncurrent Asset ‘ .
Available-forysale investment (Notes 8, 14 and 15) 20,570,501 20,825,264
. 5 #5(,505,459 RAR, 710,825
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities f
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
(Notes 9,|14 and 13) P427,045 403,212
Due to -sharqholders (Notes 13, 14 and 15) 47,271,600 47.271,600
Income tax payable B : - 3,526
Total Liabilities 47,698,645 47,678,338
Equity
Capital stock [(Note 10) 106,000 100,000
Retained earnings (Note 10) 3,136,313 1,107,223
Unrealized loss on .a\{ailable—for-sale investment (Note 8) (429,499) - (174,736)
Total Equity ' - : 2,806,814 1,032,487
' P50,505,459 248,710,825

See accompanying Notes to F inancial Statements,
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LARGE TArPAYE=E

Date

WA, GRACIA AU

Years.Ended December 31 -
! 2017 2016 2015
|
" REVENUE | ‘ .
Interest income (Notes 7 and &) £1,919,260 | R1,996,654 2 052,857
Exerclse fees (Note 6) 2,800,089 508,348 89,103
4,719,349 2,505,042 2,141,960
‘ OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 11) 1,109,892 1,063,320 1,094,413
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 3,609,457 1,441,722 ' 1,047,547 "
PROVISION FORINCOME TAX @ote 12) . 580,367 409,506 412,354’
NET INCOME 3,029,090 1,032,216 63 5,i93
. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
- (LOSS)
Jtem to be reclassified 10 pmﬁt or loss in
subsequent perwds-
Unreahzed gain (loss) o available-for-sale '
1nvestment (Note 8) - (254,763) 19,741 (725,938)
TOTAL COMZPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS) , 22,774,327 B1,051,957 (R00,735)
-_Basmexluted Earnings Per. Share (Note 16) £302.91 2103.22 P63.52
See accompanying Notes to Fmanczal Starements.
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,GMA HOLDINGS INC

'STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FQUITY

" FOR THE! YEARS ENDED- DECEMBE

R 31, 2017 2016 AND 2015

? f
Unrealized
i Gain (Loss) on
}  Retained Available-for-Sale
Capltal Stock " Earnings - Investment
| (Note 10) - ~ (Note 10} (Note 8) - - Total
| : i
“ Balance a8 at Janfuary 1,2017 B ¥1.00,000 J R1,107,223 {B174, 736) 1,032,487
"1 Net incoms f - 3,029,090 3,029,090
Othet- ccmprehenswe loss | — - ) 254,763 154,763
Total comprehcnswe income 3,029,090 (254,763) 2,774,827

'~ . (1,000,000) - (1,000,000
£2,806,814 ]

. Cash-dividends | ‘
. Balance as-atDecember 31, 2017 .~ P100,000 -B3,136,313 (B429,459)
E
Balance as at January 1,2016 - 2100,000 2575,007 (?194,477) »580,530
Net income. k : - 1,032,216 - 1,032,216
- Other cemprehenswe income - — 19,741 19,741
~Total. comprehcnswe income - 1,032,216 19,741 1,051,957
Cash dividends | — | (600,000) - (600,000) -
: 4-_"Ba1ance as at, Deccmber 31, 2016 ] £100,000 B1,107,223 (R174,736) ?1,032,487 7
- Balance asat Janiuary 1,2015 - B100,000 . R539,814 531,451 R1,171,265
o Netincome | - 635,193 - 535,193
) Other.comprehetisive 1058 - . — (725,928) (725,928)
. Total comprchen'sive loss - 635,193 (725,928) . (90,735)
- Cash dividends | - - (500,000) - (500,000}
£100,000-. 675,007 (2194,477) . P580,530

©* Balanceasat December 31,2015

" See accompanying Notes fo F irzancz’al Statements.
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GMA HOLDINGS INC.

" STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

|
i
: “Years Ended December 31
| o 2017 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES , _ S
Income beforé income-tax - L - P3,609,457 21,441,722 P1,047,547 ©
- Adjustment. for interest income’ (Notes 7 and 8) . 0 (1,919,260) (1,996,694) (2, 052 857y
" Operating income(loss) before: Workmg capital '
changes L ‘ : 1,690,197 (554,972} (1,005,310)
* Decrease (mcrease) i } - - _
Accounts receivable L1 - (346,415) - (389,230) 15,550
. Inputvalue-addedtax - 193,321 . (74,599) (64,126)
Increase in accounts payable. and oTher cun‘ent - o '
. liabilities | 23,473 36,763 . 124,580
‘ Cash flows provided.by (used 1n) opera’uons 1 56{] 576 (982,038) (929,306)
* . Interest received _ " 1,940,223 2,029,629 2,021,179
- Income taxes paid ; - - (583,893) (406,249) (410,95@
‘Net cash prowded by opera’tmg act1v1tles 2;916,906- 641,342 680,915
. CASH FLOW FROM A F]ZNAN CING
ACTIVITY
' -‘Payment of cash d1v1dends (Notes 10and17) (999;640) (599,730} (499,595)
: NET INCREASE TN-CASH AND ‘CASH .
| EQUIVALENTS 11,917,266 41,612 181,320
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R )
AT BEGINN]NG OF YEAR - 126,888,153 26,846,541 26,665,221
© CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ‘ .
‘ AT END OF YEAR’ (Note 7) - P28,305,419 $26,888,153 26,346,541

See accompanying Notes to Financtal Siatements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC..

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information |

1
GMA Holdings, Inc. (the‘;Comp’any)cis-incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or

otherwisejacquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign,
-dispose real.and personal property-of every kind-and
‘Company|is SD Tower One, One-McKinley Place, New Global Benifacio City,
Taguig City. The.Compaiy-was registered with the Securi

February 15, 2006.

The acoof;nting and adm‘inistr"ativé functions of the Compary
(GMA), & company under common control.

In 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipts
© The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) (see Note 6}.

The Company.willnot er;gage in-any business or purpo

- “of the PDRs; the performarce’of ﬂw"qbligations.‘:under-the}.
the underlying shares":bf.GMA:"Zin'i*espeCt‘_ofthe"--PDRs issue

-Companys listing 'with--the:cPSEf:and‘mamtainin_g,its-Status asa

Philippine law. prohibits ownership of GMA’s shares by non-Philippine person.

“No reportjabie' segment .inforrhation-'is-:_pr.esented asthe C
: :prescntedi‘ in the statements:of icomp‘rehensive income.

- The _accor;npanyingﬁnancial.statements of the Company were-approved
ectors (BOD) on April 5, 2018,

- -in aocord?nce’withia resolutioniof the Board of Dir

se other than in connection with the issuan
PDRs and the acquisition and holding of
d. ~This includes maintaining the
Philippine person for as long as the

(PDRs), which were listed and traded in

de

LS

‘Basis of;jl;’ reparation’ énd ‘Statement of Compliance

‘Basis of Preparation .o

< The ﬁnaﬁcial{statements':o'fl_fhé_5_‘Cdr:np;_‘
av ailablelfor-saie (ARSYinvestitient; ‘fo&fllich‘,is’-measured ‘at fair value.
_presented in Philippine pesc, which o ihe Company’s functi
except when otherwise indicated.

values are rounded to the nearest peso,

"'.S'tateme'nit of Compliance
- “The Company’s&ﬂnancial:statements have been prepat
Reporting Standards (PERS).

- Summary of-'Signiﬁcant:Chan_ges in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

b BURES 1O et TE
efibffgions fhande

Changes in Accounting Policles

. The accounting policies adopted
.the following new pronounceme
'adoptio'n_%of these pronouncements did not have significant

 position or performance unless otherwise indicated.
|

are consistent with those

Date

s which the Company adopie statiielamiatyics =
impact st COTpary’s

APR 13 2810

a@y‘}ha\}éﬂ}béenl'prcp' . red on-a historical cost basis, ekcept for
: The financial statements are
ional and presentation eurrency. All

od in accordance with Philippine Financial

IR
If;»/adr'ﬁ\%cgp’t.for

7 piEBoN
pelal

transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or otherwise

description. The registered office address of the’
. Fort'Bonifacio,
ties and Exchange Commission (SEC) on

are undertaken by GMA Network, Inc;.:

ompany’s limited operations are adequately

and authorized for issuance

{‘



- Ameﬂdment‘td PFRS 12, Disclosure-of Interestsin Other Entities, Clarification of the Scope of
the Stdndard (Part of Annual Improvements 1o PERSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to
ubsidiary, a joint venture or

_an associate (of a-portion ofiits interest in a jointventure or an. associate) that is classified (or

. included in a'_ciisposal'-group-that is classified) as held for sale.

The aii'nendments clarify that the

summ?arized financialinformation; apply to an entity’s interestin a s

Adoption of these amendmients did not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.

LES .Amenidments o Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure
Initiative o B
# The amendments requite entities o E.p'rovidé disclos
~ financing: activities, :irlic‘lu'ding._;botﬁl changes-arising from.cash flows and non-cash ¢hanges (such
‘as forpign?exchangeegains or losses),
~The 'Ci,ompany.has provide-d ;the ireqﬁizred .infOrmﬁtibn-"in Note 17 to the financial statements, As
allowed under-the.a;transitic‘m*proVisiéns of the stan
. information%for the yeat ended December 31,2016,

= Alnexidments to PASE'iZ,‘QInéome T axeis‘{RécOgnfrion of Déferred Tax Assets for_Unre&Zz‘zed

Losses

ds to_éonsidef whether tax law restricts the sources of - '
the reversal of that deductible temporary

- difference. Furtherniore; the amendments provide.-guidance.on how an entity should determine
future taxable-proﬁts.:and-’explain‘ the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.

The -ahlendments' piarify”.th_at an‘entity nee
‘taxable profits against-which-it may make deductions on

: Sincef the-Companj/’s'--p_rai:'tiCe'is in
expect any effect on its financial statements.

1 line with the clarifications issued, the Company dogs not

_Future Changes in Accountin Policies: _ ' ,
. Pronouncemexnts: issued but ot yct'ef_feotive are listed below, Unless otherwise indicated, the
Compaiy-does not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant
“impact on;- its ﬂnanoial._statémeﬁtSQ The Coropany intends to adopt the following pronouncements

~ .when these.become offective. . "

Effective ?beginm’ng on or after January 1, 2018°

o Afneﬁdments:to PFRS 2, Share-based Paymem, Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions

e

“The amendments to PFRS 7 address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the

. measurement of a cash-settled share»based-payment'transaction; the classification of a share-
bas ed payment transactioﬁii.j}Nith'.net settlarﬁent:fcatures for withholding 1ax obligations; and the
- accounting where-a rnod.iﬁéation",td +the terms and conditions of 2 share-based payment '

transaction changes its-classification from cash seitled to equity settied.

ure of changes in their liabilities arising from ~

dard, the-Company did not present comparative

—_



23 )

.

On 'flJioption, entities are required to app}y:.the-amendments-without restatiig prior periods, but
retrogpective application:is permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are

" meti [Barly application.of lﬂle‘amendments is permitted. .

The 4 mendments are not applicab

le-to the Company since the Company has no share-based
payment transactions. :

o

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments -~ ‘

PFR_EI’. 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, Financial §
Instriments: Recognition md Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
nts for classification and measurement, iropairment, and hedge

uired, but comparative information is not

y applied prospectively, with

‘introduces new requireme
- accoynting. Retrospective application is req
compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are generall

some) limited exceptions.

The ddoption of PFRS 9.will'have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
ancial "assets-andF.ifnpa.irment—.methodology_fo'r:ﬁnanoial assets, but will have ne

Company’s fin ]
lassification and easurement of the Company’s finaneial liabilities, .

impact on the ¢

The. Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4

The amendments address CONcerns arising*from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial

instruiments standard .befo_rc'.imple'mentingﬂthe.:new. insurance contracts standard. The
amqflldments ntroduce two options for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary .
exemption from applying-\P-ERS;-9:;.and an overlay approach, The temporary exemption is first
‘applied for reporting periddsf{begiﬁning onor after January 1, 5018, An entity may elect the
‘overlky approach when it first-applies PFRS 9 :and apply that approach retrospectively to financial
assets designated 'On-transition':to?-PFRS 9::The entity restates-comparative information reflecting
~the olverlay‘approach:-if,"aﬁd only if, the entity restates comparative information when applying

PFRS 9.

“The gmendments :are;hot',épﬁlicabié to the C.o'mpa'ny "sin;:é‘ the Company has no activities that.are

pred@mlnantly.connected"mth insurance or issue 1sUrance contracts,

-

PERS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers :
|

N ! - . . ' o
PFRS 15 establishes anew five-step model that will apply to revenus arising from contracts with
. Under PFRS:15; revenue is recognized at.an amount +hat reflects the consideration 0
led in exchangs for transferring goods or services to a

tructured approach to measuring and

cusicmer
which an entity expects to —be:enﬁt
customer. The principles in PFRS 15 -provide a mores

reco ﬁnizing revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicabie to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requiremenis under PFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is.
requ'! ed for armual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. Early adoption is permit‘te(&.

- The ﬁilompany is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

|
|



. Amendments to PAS:28, Meas
- Improvements 10 PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

* change in use occurs-when the property meets, OF ceases to meet,

- repoy

of the related asset, expense or incomie {or part 0

A ' f

uring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual

The amendments clarify that an entity that is a-venture capital organization, O other qualifying
entitj}, may elect, at initial recognition onan investment-by-investment basis, to measure its
inves}‘tments in associates Iand-joint‘vcmtures at fair value through profit or loss. They also clarify
that if an entity that is not itself anihvestment entity has an interest in an associate or-joint ‘
venture that is an investment entity, the entity may; when:applyingthe equity method, elect toh
retain the fair value measurement applied by that | ivestment entity asscciate of joint venture to

*s or joint venture’s interests in subsidiaries. This election is made

the investment entity associate’
separately for each investment entity associate or joinpventure, at the later of the date on which
the associate or joint

(a)t e investment entity associate or joint‘zven’;ure'is-init'ially recognized; (b)
mes an investment entity; and.(¢) ."the‘investment entity associate or joint veniure first

ven_tL}re beco ]
becomes a parent. The amendments should be applied retrospectively, with earlier application

permitted. :

-

The-amendments are nct appiicable to the Compaty since the Company does not have investment

in associate or joint venture.

.Améﬁdments to PAS-40, Jrvestment Properiy; Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify-v\'ih‘en an ent:ity:,shduld -tr_ansfef.propérty, including property under
of investment property. The amendments state that a
the definition of investment

property and there isrevidence of the change.in use, -A'mere change in management’s intentions
for t e use of 2 property}db‘e's'-notproVide evidence ofa change in use. The amendments should -
be applied prospectively to changesin use-that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
whing periodin which the-entity first applies'the amendments. Retrospective application is

permitted if this is possible without the use of hindsight.

consiruction or development intasor out

only

The amendments are not expected to have any. impact on the Company’s financial statements.

__ cial Reporting‘ Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 22, ¢

Philippine Interpretation International Finan
Foraign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

fies that, in_determining the spot exchange rate o use on initial reco gnition'
fit) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset

or non-monetary liability relating to advance Qonsideration, the date of the transaction is the date

on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset.or non-monetary liability arising

| the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments oF receipts in advance, then the

from
entity must.determine a'date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance

coﬁsldderation. Entities may apply the amendments o1 a-fully retrospective basis. Alternatively,
1] assets, expenses and income in its

an entity may apply the interpretation prospectively to &
scope that are initially Tecognized on-or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the -
entity first applies the iriterpretation oF the beginn'mg"of a‘prior reporting period presented as
combarative {nformation in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity

firstlapplies the interpretation.

The l’mterpretation clar

This|interpretation is not expected to have any impact on the Compaty’s financial statements.

t

!
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Effective ‘begz'nning on or after January 1, 2019
s Amendments 1o PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Theiamendments 10 PERS 9 allow debt instruments with.hegative compensation prepaymen%
s to be measured at amortized cost or fair-value through other comprehensive income. An

- featute
for annual reporting.periods beginning on or after January 1,

entity shall apply these amendments
2019 Earlier applicationis permitted.
Thelamendments are riot-applicable to the Compatty since:the Company has no debt ipstruments
" with negative compensation prepayment features. '

S

= PFRS 16, Leases

PFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and digclosure O,f
leases and requires lessees t0-account for all.leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar

to the accounting for finance leases under PAS 17, Leases. The standard includes two

| r:lessees — Jeases of slow-value’ assets (6.8 personal computers) and

recognition exernptions fo
shortlterm leases (i.es leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date

of a'lease, a lessee will recognize & liability to make lease payments {1.¢-, the lease liability) and

an as"r‘et representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i€, the right-of-
.use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest expense ol the lease
‘liability and the depreciation expesnise oN the right-of-use asset.

Lessées will be also required to remeasure the lease lizbility upon the ocourrence of certain evenis

- (e g;,Ia change in the lease ter, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an J
index orrate used to'.;.dc_te:rm_ineﬁth;js‘e payments).: The lessce will generally reco gnize the amount
-of the remeasurement of the Jease liability as an adjustmentto the right-of-use asset.

Lessor aocounting.undé'r'PFRS" 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS|17. Lessors will continue to classify-all leases using the same classification principle as in

PAS|17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leascs. )

ssors to make more extensive disclosures than under PAS 17.

PFRS 16 also.-requir.e_;‘_é.."_lesséés and Je

_Early application is ﬁér"‘mit't‘e‘c‘i;hut'pot hefore an e'ntity applies PFRS-15. A lessee can choose 10
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or & modified refrospective approach, The

standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

This standard is not expected t0 have any impact on the Company's financial statements.

» - Amepdments t0 PAS.28, Long-term Interests i Associates.and Joint Ventures

The gmendments to PAS 28 clarify that entities should account for long-term interests inan 4

associate or joint venture 10 which the equity method is not applied using DFRS 6, An entity shall
apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019
Earli:e_r application is permitted.

The %unendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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L Philippiné InterpretationTFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The;iqterpretation addresses 'the;acoounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve .
uncetainty that affeqts%the application of PAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scopd of PAS'12, nor does -it.spc_ciifically:include requiremments relating to interest and penalties

associated with uncertain tax treatments.

e

'n’te;'pretation.specific_aliy. addresses the following: -
Vhether an entity 'considers-uiiceﬁain tax {reatments separately
he assumptions an‘entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation

ithorities

[ow an-entify determin
-edits and tax rates,
(ow an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

The

el

es taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax

y

=

An ¢1£tity must..determi.ne,vwhe;.ther to consider. each uncertain tax treatment separately or together
t that better predicts the resolution

with one-or more otheruncertain tax treatments. The approac

of the‘ uncertainty should be followed.

Theé-(Iompany is qurrently'assessiilg the impact of adopting this interpretation. )
~;Deferrec‘iz’-eﬁecriﬁ1y . | | | | i
o :Améndments 10 P;FRS'?E-l OandPAS 28, Sale o‘r. Contribuﬁ.o.n of Assefs hetween aﬁ Invesfar and its

- Assodiate or Joint Venture -

. Thezéamendments- addr‘essri_the‘cenﬂi-ct"betwcen{PFRS- 10 and DAS 28 in dealing with the Joss of
'cont‘rf)l‘of a'subsidiary:that.is sold,ﬁor..-contributed toan associate or joint venture. The

- amendments clarify thata full gain or loss s recognized when o transfer to an associate or joint

~ venfure involves ‘a:.bgsineé'é';as'_i"dsﬁhed in PFRS:3; Business.Combinations. Any gait or loss

1but10nofassets fhat dogs not constitute a business, however, is
ent-of unrelated:investors” {nterests in thie associate or jointventuze. 7

' resqhing from the saleor
recognized only to theext '

offcing' Standards Coﬁncil deferred the original effective
_ Tnternational Accounting Standards

(IASB) completes ifs broader_re‘vieﬁfv of the research project on equity accounting that may

Boar
result in the simpliﬁcaﬁon'of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting

for agsociates and joint ventures. -

On 5 anuary 13,2016, ihi_a;F;n}_'c}nc';ia,’i_fRep ing Standards,
date of January 1,2016 df;tHe-said‘,'amendjments‘um:ii the’

4. =Summary of Significant Accounting Policies . '
A

—

Current versus Nongurrent Classification
The CGm'pany presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on

] . .
current/n?ncurrent classification,

An asset as current when it is:

_»  Expected to be realizéd:.orvintended,to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyele;
v Heldlprimarily-for the purpose of trading; '
n Expie:ted to'berealizedfw’ithin twelye months after the reporting period; or




" Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted fr

-7 -

om being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
5

least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is current when:

Tt is-expected to be settled in normal .operating cycle;
It is heid primarily for the-purpose of trading;

“Itis .dkle to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

o defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

.

The;e' is no-unconditional rightt
after, the reporting period.

‘The Company classifies a}I_;:oih.Er'.'a35ets and Habilities as noneurrent.

Deferred tax assets and 1igbilities'are classified as noncurrent:

.Cash and [Cash Equivalents .. ‘ :
Cash incliides cash on hand andin banks. Cash equivalents are short

that are readily convartible‘to”known arnousts. of cash wi
from dates of placement an

Fajr Value Measurement .-

" Fair value'is the price that would be received to sell an ass
trans actiop between xr}afltet_.paftié.ipants ot the measureien
based on Fhe presumption that the transac
either: '

The pringipal or the most'advagfégeous

The fair'value of an assetor a liability is measured Us
would use when pricing the-asset.or

_term, highly liquid ipvestments
. th original maturities of three months or less
d .are subjectto.an insignificant risk of change in value.

-

¢t or paid to transfer a liability in en orderly
¢ date. The fair value measurement is
tion to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or lability.

market must be accessible 10 the Company.
' \

ing the assumptions that market participants
liability, assuming that market participants act in thelr best

economig interest.

A fair\valfe measurement of.a non-financial asset t
© generaie $
-.market p%‘xtic_ipantithat

The Comipany uses valua?ion'-te'chniqu
sufficient data are avaﬂable'to::méasure
“and minimizing the use of uncbservable inputs.

. Assgefs & \ 1 m
: statemer':is are categoyizad‘gwithinathe fair. value hierarchy, deseri

“level inpyt that

B
%

akes into-account 8 market participant’s ability to
conomic .beneﬁts‘by{.usiug'the,.asset'__in" its highest and best use or by selling it to another
would use the assetin its highest:and best use. .

L9
umstances and for which

es that are appropriate In the cire
) £ relevant observable inputs

Fajr value, maximizing the use ©

1 liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Compartty’s financiél
[ bed as follows, based on the lowest

a

is significant to the fair value measurement as‘a waole:

Ievel|l - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets of”
tiabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques
yalue measurement is directly or in
1. Valuation techniques for which the lowest
value measurement 1s imgbservable

for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair {

directly observable
Level evel input that is significant to the fair

bl



_§- | B .

ents on a recurring basis, the

-detérmines whether:transfers have o(:ourred.bemeeri;-levelsam the hierarchy by reassessing

ut:thiat is significant to the fair value measurement as &

TFor assety and liabilities that.are recognized in the financial statem

Company _ ‘ '
categorization (based on the fowest level inp
whole) 4t the-end of each'reporting date.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value
measurements, - At each reporting date, the management analyzes the movements in the values of
assets and liabilities whichiare required to be remeasured or‘.reassessed as per the Company’s :
accounting policies. Forihié*aheil;féis;ithe-managementiyeriﬁes.:the major inputs applied in the lategt.
vatuation; by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant

-=documen!ts.

¢ disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities

For the pi‘urpose of fair valu
on the baFis of the nature, characteristics and rigks of the asset OT liability and the level of the fair

value hicirarohy. _

Details HL to how the fair value of assets and liabilities are measured are provided in Note 3.

Financial Instruments — 5
A financial instrument is any.contract that gives risc to & financial asset of one entity and 2 financial ]

liability: or. equity snstrument of another entity,
1

F inanciag Assels
Initial R ‘cogm’tion and Measurement. lFinancial essefs are classiﬁed, at initial recognition, as
gh pr_Qﬁt- or.‘lo‘ss..:(FV.PL), toang and receivables, held-to-maturity
1‘3ala"-(AFS)_',ﬂnanc_:ialﬁsgets;‘or-'asaderivatives designated as hedging
- instrum d

ents in an—,:aff¢btiyéﬁ.:_h¢dgc‘,-{a's qppropr_i__a‘te'.‘*é:AH" financial.assets are recognized initially at fair
- value plds, in the ase of financial assets not feoordedfatiFVPL;?‘transaction costs that are attributable
.to the aclquisition of the -ﬁnancia_l asset, - -

_ financialjassets at fair value throu

L (EITM) investments, available

ancial assets __fh__atz‘e‘quir_e-—deiivery of assets within a time frame established by
imthe arket plac ;.(tegUIaf way.trades) :ar.e'-recognized‘cn the trade date,

|
Purchases or sales of fin
regulati:olnﬂor,{:onycntio

“i.¢., thedate that the. Co'r_;.‘ifja'nyfgdiﬁﬁﬁt‘sitd‘ purchase or sell the asset. .
The Company has no ﬁnaﬁCi'él'a assets at FVPL, HTM iﬁVestmgnts and derivatives desigﬁated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge as At December 31,2017 and 2016. K
' f

Subsequent Measurement. The'subsaquent measurement of the Financial assets depends on their

. cla,ssiﬁcéu:ion as described below.

The Co;rilpany’s financial assets are under the loans and receivables and AFS financial assets .
classification. : :
7

Loans and Receivables. [oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)

method, |less émpairment.”’Amo'rtizad- cost is caleutated by taking {ito account any discount of

- premium on acquisition and fees or costs that arean integral'part of the EIR. The EIR amortization
) . , . , . .

*and the losses arising from impairment are. recognized in staterment of comprehensive MCOMe.

s receivable are included under this category.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, and account
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AFS Investments. The Company’s AFS financial asset pertains to debt securities. Debt securities in
this category are those thatare intended-to be held for an indefinite period of time and that may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

surement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with

After ini‘uéal mea _
unrealize'ti gains or losses recognized in other comprehensive incoms (OCT) and credited to the AFS

‘reserve untilthe .investment'is _.dqre'co_gnized, at'which time, the cumulative gain or loss is recogni@d
in othergperating income. orthe investment 18 determined to be impaired, when the cumulative loss

is reclassified from the AFS reserve to the staternent of profit or loss in finance costs. Interest earned

whilst holding AFS financial assets is reported as.interest income using the EIR method.

5 . . .
Derecognition. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of

similar;ﬁLmncial assets) 'iS'pr_imari}y'derecogn'ized (i.e., removed from the staternent of financial

position){when: ‘ ‘

o

» The Compahy has:tr?méférred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pas -through’-'arrangeme‘nt;fand_ either (a)‘-thc.;Com-pany'has transferred substantially all the risks
and tewards of the-asset, or(b) the Company has neither iransferred nor retained substantially all

the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transterre

‘% The gight's'to -receive‘j_:c_gsﬁfﬂOW_'S-frorh the asset have expired; or '

d cantrel of the asset.

“When the Company.:hasﬁramlferi‘ed‘itS—rightS to réceive cash flows from an asset or has enfered into a
* pass-thrq ugh arrangement, it evaluates if,:and to-what oxtent/ it has retained the risks and rewards of
- ownership. When it has-neither transferred nor retained substantiaily all of the risks and rewards of
 the asset] nor transforred controlof the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred 7
asset tolthe extent of its continuing involvement. Inthat case, the Compary also recognizes an
_associated liability. The transferred assot and the associated Lability are measured on a basis that

reflects the rights and -obligations_that-the Company’ has retained.

antee over the sransferred asset I8 measured at

Continuing involvement:ihat,take__s the forin of a guar
and the maximuri amount of consideration that r

the lower of the original:carrying amount of the asset
! ry

the Comrany could be required to repay.

Impairment of F' inancial Assets. The Compaity assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is

objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairmers

exists if pne or more events that has oceurred $ince ihe initial recognition of the assel (an incurred

‘loss event®), has an impact on ihe estimated future cash flows of the financial assst or the group of
' ﬁnancié\ assets that can be reliably estimated. Lvidence of impairment may include indications that
. the debtors or a group of debtorsis axp_eriencing-signiﬁcant’ﬁnanoial difficulty, default or
er | payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey of other
ing that there is a measurable decreasc in the
ditions that correlate with

delinquency in interest or principa
financial reorganization_and observable data indicat
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears of econOMmIc con

 defaults:

[

at Amortized Cost. For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the
hethet impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually signiﬁcant;‘.or'fcol"lelcti_vsly for financial assets that-are not individually significant. If the
Compan determines that no obj ective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
-financia] asset, whetlier significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
. similarf-o‘redit risk characteristics aﬁd collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that.are

|

£
i
) i mees e e g Y

Financial Assets Carried
Company first assesses.w
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individuaily assessed forimpairment and for swhich an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
‘recognized are not included in'a-collective assessmient of impairment.

- The amoynt of any-impairr'rierit"iloss identified is:measured asthe difference between the asset’s -
carrying amount and j_’_the.ﬁpr‘_esgnt' value of estimatgdfuiure'cash' flows (excluding future expected
credit losses that-have not yet:been incurred). “The present value of the estimated future cash flows 18

‘-discounte;d at the financial asset’s original EIR.

" The carr)Ling amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is
_recognized in'the statement.of comprehensive.’:inccj'me._:. Interést income centinues o 5e accrued on
“the reduced carrying:amount using the rate of jnterest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purposé};ijuf 'measuring!.th_e_f;imp_ajrment 1oss. ‘Loans) together-with the associated allowance are written
off when|there is no realisticiprpspect'of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has
been iransferred to the Company. If; in 2 subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment,”
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurting after the-impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or feduced by adjusting the allowance

account! |If a writs-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other income in the statement of

cempreh | nsive income.

AFS Imgeisrmenrs. For AFS financial assets, the Compary-assesses al each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or & grotp of investments is impaired.

classified as AFS, the impairment i assessed based on the same |
criteria as financial assets-carried_a’t_amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is

~the cumuiaﬁve lose measured.asthe difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value,

less any impairment loss on th:at-‘invcstmcnt_previously recognized in profit o loss.

In the cage of debt instruments

-Future imcrests-iriccme-‘conti'nu‘es"to be accrued based o the reduced carrying amount of the asse,
using the rate of i.nterest=-uséd3't'd'f&iscbun_t the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
_ impairment loss. The interest is recorded as part of inferest income. If, in a subsequent year, the fair
- yalue of'a d'ebt_-instrument=.-.inqr.e_as‘eé---_and»the increase can be obj ectively related to an event 0CCUITING
d'in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through

_after the jmpairment loss Was Tecognize
“profitor _}oss.' oo :

F z'nancfa‘_l Ligbilities
' nitial-Recognition and Me:aé_zgrenftem‘;.'ZjFinanci_al;liabilitiES -_are' classified, at initial reco gnition, as
~financialilHabilities ‘at‘-fair__fv.ah;,ei'through"proﬁt-orI‘oss,“loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al ﬁnan]zial liabilities are _reo_.c.)_ gnized initially at fair-value and, in the case of loans and borrowings

and payables, net of directly attriputable transaction costs.
“ The Company’s acco.unts_.‘_p'aya;blle and'other current {jabilities (exciuding deferred output VAT) anc&
due to sqareholders are included under this category.

measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent
classiﬁcTtion as described below. ‘

After initial recognition, payables are subsequently measured at amortized costusing the

Payable 3
zed in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as

EIR method. GGains and losses are. recogni
well as through the EIR.amortization process.
| A

|

1

H
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&

o account any discount of premium on acquisition and fees

Amortized cost is. calculated by, taking int
he EIR amortization is included as interest expense in.
/

or.costs that are an integral part-of the EIR. T
the statement of comprehensive income.

-Derecognition. A financial.liability is derecognized when the obligation under the iiability is

- discharged or cancelled or expires. - When an existing financial Hability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially.different terms, or the terms offan existing liability are substantially
modified| such an exchange ormodification is-treated-as-the derecognition of the ariginal liability and
the recognition of a new liability. - The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in

the statement of profit or loss.

Offse:ttim!gr of Financial Instruments \
Financial assets and financial liabiiities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial 1posif:ion if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is af intention to seitle on a net basis; or to realize the assets and seftle the liabilities |
simultané(ously.. The Company. assesses that it has a currently enforceable right of offset if the right is
egally enforceable in‘the normal course of business, event of

.not contingent on'a future’event,and is ] :
 default, and event of insclvency or bankruptey of the Company and all of the counterparties.

-

.

Equity
Capital Stock, Capital ‘sfpck;“i"s_jif}'easured_ at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred
- directly attributable tothe issuance’of new shares are shown'in equity as a deduetion from proceeds,
.net of tax. ' R ' co
- Retained|Earnings. ‘-'Retained-\eémings represent.the -Companj/’s accumulated earnings, net of

- dividends declared. -

Dividends. The Compaﬂy‘ﬁrepogni.zes_;a;\liabiﬁty to make cash distribution to its equity holders when
the distribution is authorized and the distribution s no Tonger at the discretion of the Company. As per
“the oorpérate.;.lawsﬁin'therPHﬂippmes; 4 distribution is authorized when it is approved by the BOD. A
- corresponding amount is;recognized-directly in the equity: Dividends for the year that are approved
" after the financial reporting date ate dealt with as-an event after the reporting date.

Revenue ‘ .
Revenuelis recognized to the extent that it is prob
Company and the revenue.can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is received.
Revenuelis measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty, The Company assesses its
revenue arrangements agairist specific criteria in.or
The Company has concluded that itis acting as-a principal in all its revenue

able that the economic benefits will flow to the

arrangements. \

_ The follgwing specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Inrerasr-linco'me. Revenue-is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effactive yield
on the asset. '

srecognized upon conversion of PDRs to common shares.

kS

ExerciselFees. Revenue i

Expenses :
in the statement of comprehensive Income are

Bxpenses presented as “Operating expenses” account
recognized as incurred.

i

der to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. .
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Taxes 3

income tax assets and {iabilities for the current period are measured at

Current I{acome Tax. Current. .
the amouht expected to be r‘e.cgv'ered‘from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax

jaws use ito compute the amount-are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at reporting date.

- Current mcomc'tax‘relatipg 1o 1tcms_3recogmzqd*dnectly in equity 1S recognized it equily and not in -

. profit Dri:_}oss..f,Managem@ntzpériOdic_alIy.‘evalluates positions taken ih the tax returns with respect 1

situations| in which ap_plicabl‘evta;x regulations ‘are subject to {nterpretation and establishes provisions

“where appropriate.

d tax :j_g_.provided_'using thciliabiiity method on all temporary differences at

Deferred|Tax. - Deferre
jties and.their carrying amounts for financial

_reportingidate botween thetaxibases 0f assets and Habil
‘reporting purposes at.:th'e::fepbrt_ing_.daté. I

“Deferred fax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of

excess minimum corporate income, tax (MCIT) over-tegular corporate income tax (RCIT) ‘and net

operating|loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income Will be
available against which the:deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits of excess,
MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except: ;" ‘

»  When the deferred tax--assgt_f_e’lating.-to,_the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or ligbility in a transaction that is not & business combination-and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neitherthe Jocounting income nor taxable profit or loss; and

» Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
sssociates and interest in joint arrangements,.defe'néd income {ax. assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will overse in the foreseeable future

and taxable income will be a;vailable'against.which the temporary differences can be utilized.

f deferred tax assets is reviewed dt each reporting date and reduced to the y

e that sufficient taxable profit-will be availabie to allow all or part of
be-utilized.- Unr.ecognizé_d;deferred income tax assets are reassessed
to the.extent that it has become probable that future taxable

The carryjng amount-o
extent that it.is rio Jonger probab
the deferred income tax assets o
“at each reporting date and are -:j_e'cognized-

profit will allow the deferred income fax assets to be recovered.

es are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset .
mbination -and, at the time of the transaction,

Deferred tax labiliti

~» Whel the deferred jncome tax liability arises from
or liability in a transaction that isot.e business co
affedts neither:the accounting profit nor taxeble profit or 108 and

» Inrespectof taxable temporary differences'ass'QCi'ated_,.wi_th'investments in subsidiaries, associates

| nt: ' ] timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be

* and interests in joint:ventures, wher the timi
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

sured at the tax,rétes. applicable to the year when the asset is

- Deferred tax assets and -1“i‘fcyb‘i1'iti‘§>s; are.mea
have been to be enagted or

realized or the Hability"is-‘Seﬁléd;?bassd"bn tax rates and tax laws that

‘ ‘substanti\}eiy enacted at the reporting date.
|

abilities are offset if a leg'aﬂy.enferceable right exists to oftset current tax

L .
Deferred tax assets and li
deferred taxes relate to (he same taxable entity and the -

assets aga;inst current tax liabilities and the
same taxation authority.

. Income tzllx relating to OCLis recognized in OCI section of the statements of comprehensive Icome.

i

|
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Value-added Tax (VAT). 'Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if

applicable.

 When VAT from sales of: gogﬁdé and/or services (output VAT) .ew_iéeeds VAT passed on from
services (input VAT), the excess is recogrized as payable in-the statement of

purchases of goods or
ﬂnancia}::position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds
VAT from sales of goodzs:and/dr'-services-(output'-VA‘T),,the excess is recognized as an asset in the .

statement of financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount. : {

The net aount'of VAT recoverable from, ot payable to, the taxation authority is presented as “Input

"W AT or part of .“Accouhtsgpay_ablé and other current liabilities” accounts in the statement of

financial position, respectively.

Earnings Eer Share (EPS) _

Basic BPS amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinaryfshar.es“_outstandingﬁ during the year. The Company tas no dilutive potential
common ghares outstanding, thereiore, basic EPS is the same as diluted EPS. ‘ '
Provisions ‘ _ \
Provisic s are recognized when the Company has a'p:-es‘antfobligation (legal or constructive) where,
as a resulf of a past event, itis probable that an outflow of asséts-embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and 4 reliable estimate can-be made of the amount of the
obligatim}l. I the effect of the time value of money.is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected-future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and,-where appropriate, the risks specific to the. liability. Where discounting
.is used, ltH—la increase in thfc:ﬁ-fplfq_\visipn;:gh_x'e to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
W ere‘t‘he‘Comp'anyéxp?t-:_ts,“-a!pfo‘\fisjoﬁ to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as &
separate asset-but only when the receipt of {he reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencies - ‘ o : o

Contingéint'liabiliﬁes.are')not:_i.scogniz_ed inthe financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes

o financial statements :unl_éss:the}pst_ibility-of..an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
t assets are not e financial statements but are disciosed in the

‘< remote. Contingent assets are not recognized inthe’
-notes io:;ﬁnancial ZStatem;;n.tsﬂe{zyh'en anin

flow Qf’ecOhomidbeneﬁts is probable.

Tyents after the Reporting ‘Date - - | -

Post yeei_r—end‘evént's'that provide additional iriformation about the Company’s position at the
reporting!date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that!
are not adjusting evenis are disclosed in the notes 10 financial statements when material.

-

5. -Summar‘y of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

i

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Company to make.
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
ty about these assumptions and estimales

the carrying amount of assefs or

~ estimates :
_and disclbsure of contingent assels and liabilities. Uncertain
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment 1o

liabilities affected in future periods.

ated and are based on historical experience and other factors,

Fstimates are continually evaiu |
be determinable under the circumstances.

including expectations of future events that are believed to
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The key cstimates and assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty at reporting date, that have.a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial vear, are discussed below. The ’
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements

' bout-future developments however, may

were pre Jared. Bxisting circumstances and assumptions a
change dpe to market changes.or circumstances. arising beyond the control of the Company. Sucky

changes dre reflected in the assumptions when these ocour. ‘ ]

Determining Fair Value ofAFS Investmeni. The Companj has no intention of selling its AI'S
investment in-the near term. ‘Ttis being held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity

requiremén‘cs or changes in market condition.

Since the AFS investment is not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using
approprizte‘;valuation-Execlmiqqs-j,' which is the discounted: cash flow methodology. The inpuis tothe
ossible; but where this is not feasible, a degree of

model are taken fro_rn"obsﬁewab}lc._markefs‘,Wher‘e p
judgment is required in establishing fair value.

The detesmination of thie fair-value of the ATS investment is discussed in Note 15.

Impairment ofAFSIﬁvesfmeﬁt; . The'assessmr:;nt-‘fdr‘impairment of AFS debt instrument requires an

 estimation of the present-value of the expectedfuture cash flows and the selection of an appropriate
:discountTate. Judgment by mansgement is required-in the-estimation of the amount and timing of

future cagh flows when dgfcfélfmhﬁ'ng'if al.lQWancgi‘is'r_equir'ed.f:"Suéh estimates. are based o1
assumptions about-a number-of:factors and actual resuits may differ.. Aliowance may be based on any
deterioration in the internal rating of the investment.since it was acquired. These internal ratings tale
into consjderation factors such asany deterioration in risk, industry, and the financial health and near-

_term business outlook of the issuer, as well as identified structural weaknesses or deterjoration in cash

flows. _
-There was 1o provision for impairmég_t']oss in.2017, 2016 and 2015. The carrying value of AFS
. investmer‘lt‘amoumed‘to ?20’.57-million and'?2,0.83 million as at December 31,2017 and 2016, .
respectinly (see Note-8). ' o '
Income Tax Assets. The Company’s assessment on the
recognition of deferred income tax assets o1 carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT &

based upon the likely timing-and level of forecasted taxable income in the subsequent periods. This |
forecast:is based on the Company’s future exp_ectaﬁons on revenue and expenses.

Estimatin o Realizability of Deferred

The Cempany didmnot rccogﬂ;’;#é _dcf_errsd_.inco'mc_ tax _éssets_amoupting to B0.50 million and

- P0.73 milliod as .-at‘D;c_cémb:_ci:B1',:'?':2017 and 2016, respectively as management believes that sufficient
taxable profit will not be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized

(see Note 12).

-

Philippine Deposit Receipts
822,115,000 and 123,317,000 PDRs

“On July'30, 2007 and August21, 2007, the Company issued
d PDRs.is 945,432,000 fora

~relating to GMA shares, respectively. Total number of issue
consideration of £8.50 per.shate or £8.036,172,000.

ubject to certain other
f the proceeds of such sale of

;f‘

ders, upon payment of the exercise price and s

-~ “Each PDR grants the hol
hare or the sale of and delivery ©

conditions, the delivery ofone GMA s

3
B



one GMA share. The Company remains t
the PDRs. The Company alsoretains the v

‘The GM)?
media and GMA-may reject-the transfer of shares
PDRs were listed in the PSEon July 30, 2007, and the same-
date, Angr cash dividends or.other cash distributions in respec
Company shall beapplied-towar
preceding years. A furtheramount-equal to the operating expen
* aside to'n cet operatingior other expenses for the succeeding years. A
" aggregate. of-the_oper_atiﬁg...g);pé11ses;pe}id‘and. the Qperatin_g‘fund‘fo_r suc
. .PDR h'oljers pro-rata-on the first business day & ch
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o be the registered owner of the GMA shares covered by
oting rights over the GMA shares. P
shares are still subject to ownership restrictions on shares of corporations engaged in mass
‘torpersons other than Philippine nationals. The

: niay, be exercised at any time from said
t.of GMA shares received by the

.d:tlxej‘operating;expenscs'-of the:Company for the current and

nses in the preceding year shall be set
ny amount in excess of the
h period shall be distributed to

ftor such cash dividends are received by the

Company. o : : ;

Upon exdreise of the PDRs, an exercise price.o'f 20.05

“PDR hol
comprehs
2017, 20

i
1

Immedia*ﬁely prior.to the cloéing of the

to which
to which
PDRs Wi

pertaining to these shares; iﬁ_bluding;voting.righ
obligatio‘hs of the Company to deliver
are secured by the Pledge of Shares in

PDR ove

- Atany ti

¢ deliver shares to the Co_mﬁany;{in}cxchan ge
~prevailing traded value-of GMA”-s’har,esiat tl

price.

As discu‘vfsed:ab.ove,'the.-Co_.rhpan_y retains the rights 0 receive the

GMA and assumes a corifractua
. opé;rating! eXpenses (a ‘pass- ugh’ arrangemment): “The “pass-thrcug
* Company (a)has.no obligation to. the PDR holders-unle |
investm_e%xt in GMA, (b)is
other than.as security tothe PDR holders for the obligatio

obligatio
delay.

Under the “pass-through” test, the Company is

rewards:c

(VAT inclusive) per share shall be paid by the
is shown as “Exercise fees” account in the statement of

ers. The exercise price |
fees amountsd to P2.80 millicn, P0.51 million and P0.09 million in

nsive income. Exercise
16 and 2015, respectively.

PDR offering and additional issuances described above, GMA, '
the Compaily is affiliated, transferred 945,432,000 GMA shares to the Company in relation
ihe PDRs were issued. . For as long as the PDRs are pot exercised, the shares underlying the

| continue to be registered in the name of, and owned by the Company, and all rights

ts, shall be exercised by the Company. The .

the GMA shares on exercise of the right contained in the PDRs

favor of the Pledge Trustee acting on behalf of each holder of a

the GMA shares.

ne after the PDRoffermg,a GMA shareﬁo_ldepmay,“‘at‘_his;option and from time to time,
'in foran equal number of PDRS. The exchange js based on
\e'time of transaction with the ¢orresponding PDR option ‘

cash flows from its investment in

flows-to the PDR holders, net of

lggsc_pbl_ig'._aﬁiqn:to,,payfj:hose‘cash, _
Seral h” test is met because the

on i o5 it collects equivalent amounts from its
ﬁé:ﬁ}hti*éibtdaily‘pro’hibit’ed' from selling ot pledging its investment in GMA
ion to' pay the cash flows, and (¢) has an
GMA to the PDR holders without material

| to remit any.cash flows from the investment in

deemed to-have transferred substantially the risks anfd

£ it investment.in GMA. Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the liabilities related to

" the issuance of the PDRs are not recogfized by the Company.
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the underlying GMA shares for the
f

years ended December 31: - - .

PDRs ' Number of Shares
2017 2016 2017 2016

Balance at beginning of year
JfPDRs -

$7.097,177,850 B7,193,967,350 $34,062,100 846,349,100
(533,137,000) (96,789,500} (62,722,000) (11,387,000}

‘Exercise’

Balance af end of year

L ":l-;F6,56'4;040,850“’?7,‘097,'17:7,850 772,240,100 834,962,100

On Marc%: 27,2017, the-Company’s BOD appro
chare totaling B595.24 miltion,'in relation o dividends declar

as at Apr

On April

ghare totaling to 2338.54 million, in relation to

record as

‘The BOD approved 'aj:res:pijufi

.GMA wi

’ .‘..Ma;rch_'27|’, 20 17;:and.:Apf-il;8,,.-2_O 16,/respectively Such expenses's
income fl

As discu

ved & cash distribution to PDR holders of B0.73 per

120,2017. These'were remitted to the PDR. holders.on May 16, 2017.

ed a cash distribution to PDR holders of 80.40 per
dividends declared by GMA to all shareholders of

at April 25, 2016.-These were remitted to the PDR holders on May 17, 2016.

8, 2016, the Company’s BOIrapprov

gﬁrto:paéslon-the‘-:entire amount of the cash dividends received from

ompany’s 2017:and 2016 projected operating expenses on
hall be covered by the interest”

hout deductingt

om the Company’s-cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment.

sed in Note-1 8’,.5011‘Apri_} 5:2018, the BOD approved a:cash distribution to PDR holders in

relation th dividends declared by GMA.

7. ~Cash ané Cash Equivalents

| 2017 2016 _
Cash|on hand and in banks £2,810,924 21,540,880
Short-term deposits ~ -~ ' 25,994,495 25,347,273 :

— T R18.805419  P26,888,153

~Cash in]

varying periods of up fo three months depending on the imme

s.#Short-term deposits are made for

|anks «earh interest: atl;theil}f:@e@tiiga‘ bank. depositir‘atq
diate cash requirements of the

Compan;}, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in ba

P0.87 mi

nks and short-term deposits amourted to B().79 million,

lion and B0.92 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

8. Availab‘li

Tn 2014, the Company purdha_s_cd at par a ten-year Union

with a face value of 221,00 miltion bearing a
rate based on the five year (5Y) PDST-RZ plus 196 basis point

interest p

(bps) from the 22nd interest payment:

.quarterly

“Interest income ea;rned.fromri__the‘UBP Tier Note amounted to £

.-for-Sale Investment -

Bark of the Philippines (UBF) Tier Note
“fixed interest rate of 3 38% from the st to the 21st

Fym_ent dates and an interest
- ent-date to the last interest payment date, The interest is payable

[

The maturity date.of this note is oii. February 20, 2025,
1.13 miliion in 2017, 2016 and 2015.

ed by GMA to all shareholders of re%ord

-
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The movement in AFS investment is as follows:

2017 2016

Balance at beginning of year P20.825,204 20,805,523
Change in fair value ' (254,763) 19,741
Balance at end-ofiyear. .-« - 20,570,501 P20,825,264

Movement ofinet unrealiidd_ Toss on AES investment is-as follows:

‘ S 2017 2016

Balance at beginning ofyear (R174,736) (R194,477)
(Gain|(loss}.due to changes in-fair-value of AFS :
investment A T (254,763) 19,741

- Balafee at end-of year” = . (®429,499) (®174,736)

9. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities .
‘ 2017 2016 ';
Accounts payable 65,845 29,643
Accried expensest « . o -

Professional and trust fees (Note 13) 275,000 342,857

(thers e 1,714 3,702
Deferred output VAT 81,437 44,321
Dividends payable 3,049 2,089
P427,045 R403,212

Accounts payable-and accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled within the
. next financial year. “Accrued expenses represent ‘qudit fees, retainer fees and miscellangous expenses.

10. Equity

a. Capital Stock
The:-.-Company_haé"iG,OO.U';authorized, issued and outstanding common shares with 210,00 par
valug per share. R _

The: following summa_rizeéﬁ-'thc._,'iﬁformatgon onthe Company’s registration of securities with the

SEC|as requir'edfbny;dUrities“"ReguIation'Co'defRule_ 68, As Amended (2011):

Authorized Number
o : Number of Issued Issud/
Date of SEC 'Approx'f.al‘ of Shares Shares Offer Price
Tuly 30,2007 ° : ©945,432,000 945,432,000 R8.50

b. Retained Barnings

any’s declaration and distribution of cash

On Mearch 30, 2015, the BOD approved the Comp
olders of record as at December 31, 2014,

divijends amounting to 20,50 million to all stockh

y
-t
i
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On A_pril-S, 2016,_1thé.-BOD‘;\approv§:d the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash
dividends: amounting',;tq?q:'éo million to all shareholders-of record as at April 29, 2016 and were

paid on May 27,2016, - ‘

On March:27, 201-=’7,ﬁ-fhé :B.O.D.'appro_ved the Company’s.declaration and distribution 6f cash

- dividends 'amounting;:tbﬂ?l,.{)o miilion to all stockholders of record as at April 10, 2017 and were

paid on May 9, 2017, /
On April 5, 2018, the BOD applroved the Company’s.declar_ation and distribution of cash
dividbnds amounting toR3:10 million to.all siockholders of record as at April 9, 2018 (see
Note [18). | - :
11. Operating Expenses
| 2017 2016 2015
Profelssio_nal-fees $517,910 R382,857 R475,291 3
Listing fees : 497,692 614,064 576,046
Taxcs and licenses ~ 35011 31,509 20,382
Others ‘ g . - 59,279 34,890 22,694
’ o TRI1109,8920 + B1,063,320 CB1,094,413
12. Income_}Taxes L -
.Provisiop:forginco‘me.:tax.';asl's;hoﬁ_h-ih'the statements of comprehensive income consists of the
following: . ' A . ——
B IR i s o017 . 2016 2015
-Final|tax on interest income™ . - CUOR383852 £399,339 R410,572
rRCIT ¢ T - T204,698 - -
Benefit from deferred-tax - R (8,183) - = -
MCIT & 7 il et R 10,167 1,782
o T R580,367 . -2 409,506 - P412,354

me tax Qomb_uté_cizat-;stamtory income tax rate to provisiafn

The recdrrcili@tion__.of the provision for.inco
f .comprehensive income is summarized as follows:

for inconje tax as shown in the statements o

| - 2017 2016 2015
Provijsion-for income tax- :
computed at statutory
income tax ratc of 30%- £1,082,837 p432,517 P314,264
TIncome tax effects of:
{ovement in unrecognized
" deferred tax assefs. (310,544) (226,597). 36,306
Interest income subjected to : '
| final tax - (191,926) (199,669) (205,285)
Expired NOLCO and MCIT - 403,255 267,069

. P580,367 L R409,506 P412,354
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Deferred [Lax Assels
The components of unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows: !
2017 2016
NOLCO - P356,488 P658,849
Unrealized loss on AFS investment 128,850 52,421
MCIT L 11,949 20,132
‘ P497,287 £731,402
" The compenent.of deferréd iai:&ése‘c_'iaeﬁ&iriingto ‘unfealized:lzoss on AFS investment is related to
" equity. ‘ '
As.at '_Déc ember 31,2017, N QLCO.. and MCIT that cém be claimed as deduction from Future taxable
income and RCIT due, respectively, are as foliows: :
- o ";"Ca'rryfumard'Béneﬁt S
_ Date Paid/Incurred - . S WUpTo . NOLCO ' MCIT
Decelmberﬂ‘l,,’?.o L5 7 December 3 ;2018 - '_‘?633,322' 21,782
Deccmber 31,2016 - " December 31,2019 554,972 10,167
Lo S ' - - P1,188,294 211,949
The movements in NOLCO&ndMCIT follow:
| " 2017 wie |
NOLFO: S ‘ :
B[alance at beginning of year P2,196,165 B2 985,377
ﬁ‘&ddition - 554,972
Application (1,007,871) -
Expiration _ - (1,344,134)
Balance at end ofiyear $1,188,294 22,196,165 i
Bfalance at beginning.of year - £20,132 9,965
@ddition : R - 10,167
Application (8,183) -
TDalance at end of year P11,949 £20,132
._Republié ActNo. 10963;.‘9f'_t11e_.’$_a}_p Réform. _er_cheleratioh_and Inclusion Act (TRAIN) was signed
into law ¢n:December.1 9:2017-and-tock effect on:J anugry’l, 2018, making thenew tax law enacted

as of the reporting date. the TRAIN changes the exi
provistons that will ganera’;l}j);é'affeqt businesses on a-progpeptiv

. the same will not have any-significant impact o the financial s
date. ‘ - ‘

date, “Although

[ S —
13. ‘Related Party Disclosures’ B

considered, toberelated.d
significant in
is"o”co"nsidered-to

Parties ar
-other party-of exercise
decisions, Parties are-2

sting tax law and includes several
&

f one party-has.the ability, ¢
Auence over the othef party
verelated if they are.su

-

hasis, the management assessed.that
tatement balances as of the reporting

irectly and indirectly; to oornirel the |
in making financial and operating
bject to common control.
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Terms an)d‘Condit_ions.ofTransac-_’gions:wii:h Related Parties
tee: ded orrecovered Tor-any related party receivables or payabies
and settlements gectrin cash.T he'QQmpany’s_ﬁnandial statements include the following amounis
' s.at December 31:

resulting from the transactionsiwithtelated parties a

: - Amount/Volume - Outstanding .
~ Category - Year < of Transactions - - Payable Terms Conditions
.Shargholdérs T _ ' - _ _
Portion of proceeds retained 017 P " §47:271;600. On demeand upon Unsecured
from the issuance of PDRs . ..2016 S 47,271,600 exercise of FDRs, *
: ' Co . noninterest-bearing
- Belo, Gozo}v, Blma Law Firm- 2017 o 202,910 200,000 On demand, noninterest- Unsecured
U a6 - 6785T 267,857 bearing ;

:The outstandingbalance of ) .sha
pertainsitp the portion ofithe riginal proc

14,

‘The Company’s key manag;n}enﬁ"personnel are ¢mployed by
_allocated L ‘

‘The main ri;ké" arisiné-’f_;@iﬁhg.:Gc1tiﬁa;1_y’

w  Ligui ity-‘Rz'sk;“I_}_i_quiditﬁf islc..‘a_\.:_isgas‘.f‘rognf-he p__c,j,sgibiﬂl_ity,;.jthgt the

s Credit Risk. Cr'édit‘riskia_ri'sgas

‘The BOD‘ reviews and approves the Company’s obje

“liquidity to meet-obligations -gngl_e_r‘normal and adverse circumstan

“Due.to shareholders®: account in:the statements of financial position
eeds ,fréfn"thé:-issuancé of PDRs retained by the Company
e PDRs equivalent to 0.05 per
lated to the issuance of the PDRs.

as the PDR,is‘su'e:r-5-in'cdr.lsigle‘r_ﬁtiohifor the rights granted underth
PDR. This amount will be used for the liguidation of expenses 1e
Any.excess is to be remitted to the selling shareholders. -

GMA and no part of their salaries was

to the Company.. - . . N

i

Financihi Risk Management Objectives and Policies

jal instruments. include cash and cash equivalents and AFS

“Ths Comlpany_’s“:principal}g,_ﬁng,gc,
. investmeht, ‘The main purpose '
. The Coripany, bas othe
~and oth@rrcur‘r_éﬁ:f;_l’ia.bilitli_,
.- directly from its operations.”

purpdse af” hqs_e:fﬁnanoia_il;;\in‘_str_,umentsg__isﬂ,to‘.ﬁnance..the Company’s.operations. -

‘ts_fﬁ;tn_d;li.abi}ities«\s‘q(;h:.:a,s:gé;qcounts receivable, accounts payable
xcluding ':gle.fer‘réd.-qyf;tputi:y ATy and.due to shareholders, which arise

o

$ ﬁnanc‘iai;s‘tatemants' are as follows:

Company may encounter
ommitments from financial iistruments. - '
aterisk'is the'risk that the fair valie of a financial instrument will
i market interest rates. : '
rffbm'ildefauit-'of‘the counterparty.

- difﬁolill'tieés inraising fun
* Intemsz‘:RcitéRis@f“lif_t'@l:ég_
- fluctyate becayse of chang

IS

ctives and policies.

Liquidity|Risk o ‘ o
Jiquidity management is to ensure that the Company has sufficient

The Company’s 0bj ective in
ces and is able to take advaniage of
investment opportunities s they arise.

d cash equivalents from operations and
liquidity needs. The Compeny likewise
to broaden the Company’s range of

The Com‘pany manages its 1iquidity risk by using its cash an

interest iTcon1e from AFS investment t0 meet its short-term

regularly jevaluates other financing insiruments and arrangements

financing sources.
‘ Y

|

I

|
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The tables below sUmMmMarize the maturity proﬁle of the Company’s Ginancial assets used for liquidity
risk management purposes:and’ ﬁnanc1a1 Jiabilities based on.contractual undiscounted payments as at
December 311 :
2017
More than
i On Dempand 3 to 12 Months ' 1 year Total
Financial Assets - :
Cash and cdsh equivalents. ‘ £28,805,41% B : - £28,805,419
Accounts receivable 881,262 - - 881,262 .
AFS investinent ] ) — $82,130 19,688,365 29,570,501
Lo 229,680,681 P8§82,136 19,688,365 P50,257,182 %
Financial Diabilities '
Accounts peyable and other gurrent
liabilitjes* : 345,608 S 2 345,608
Dus to shargholders 8,659,595 - 38,612,005 : - 47,271,600
| ) : . 9,005,203 $38,612,005 P 247,617,208
S - More then y
. On Demand 3 to 12 Months 1 year Teta
Financial 4ssets . :
Cash and cash equivalents o 7 P26,888,133 ?—— P B26,888,153
Accounts receivable LT 555,810 - - 555,810
ATS investment ' - '.--.879,968 ] 19,945,296 20,825,264
P27.443,963 - B879.968 . R19,945,296 48,260,227
Financial, ]#mblhtles S o _
- Accounts payable and other current L E : Co .
liablllt}es* _ T R358,891. . B B P§58,891
Due to shareho ders S . 5.523495. C41748,105 0 - - - 47,271,600
‘ i 5 882, 386- P41 748,108 - - P 247,630,491
2] Zs af December 3172017 nd 2016, respeciively. ;‘

“*Excluding q{eferred output VAT amaummg lo P81 437 and R44,3

i
Interest Rate Risk |
"The Compeny 5. exposureit
Company s AFS mvestmen

Fair Value Interest Rate. stk The Company s AFS investment

from the

from the | 22nd interest payment date to the Jast in

- demonstrat
- other varlables held constant ‘(through

AFS1

Credit Risk
‘With respec

investme
maximu
. For cashr

he- rlsk of changes 1 in ‘market interest rates relates primarily to the
t whwh are subject to’ falr value mterest rate risk.

earns interest at a fixed rate of 5.38%
d arate based on the 5Y PDST-R2 plus 196 bps
terest payment date. The following table below

es: the sensitivity of fair value changes due 10 possible change in interest rates with all
the impact on other comprehensive income). N

ﬂst to the21st 1nterest payment dates an

Increase

(Decrease) in Effect on Equity

Basis Points 2017 : 2016
30 (#995,748) (£653,500)

|nvestment | ‘
' ‘ o - (50) 157,470 709,352

{10 credit riskarising. from cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and AFS
dit risk arises from default of the counterparty. The

7S -jnvestment are equal to their car TYing amounts.
$28 30 miltion and £26.30 million as at

t, the Company. s:exposure to-cre
h eXpOSUIe: of accourits’ reeewables and AF
Fnd cash equwalents the maximum exposure is

|

|
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Decembc}r 31,2017 and 2016, respectively, or the carrying amount less insured amount by the
Philipping Depesit Insurance Corporation equivalent to the actual cash in bank balance to a maximurm
of B0.50 million per depositor per bank. It is the Company’s policy to enter into fransactions with a
diversity-of creditworthy parties to mitigate any 'signiﬁcant‘con'centraﬁon‘of credit risk. The
Company, has an _internal;me_chanism'to' monitor:the granting of credit and management of credit
exposures...‘The_».Company»-vwfiIX_-;}lqlce;provisions, when necessary, for potential losses on credits

- extended '--"The*Co'mpgny;'dOe ot require any collateral for its financial assets. .

As at D'é; ember'31,201 7-;;41}.@:1?20:1;6;itlle=financialiasSets _afc,---g_gparally'vicwed. by management as gocd
ditﬁhis_toi’y‘of'theséqodntei’psfties'. No financial assets were identified
4 fingncial assets as atDecember 31, 2017 and 2016.

and -cclle_ctib:le-c_orisideriﬁg';:ih}e- creé
by the-Comparty as past dusror impaire

* Credit Otality of Financial Assets
“The.credit quality of financialassets
as internal.crgdit’fatings.' o :

"-ié"iizﬂ'.anaggdf_by};the:‘Com‘p_any using high grade and‘standard grade

cted by the Company 0 defauit in |

High Grade. . This-:pertaihsfto acounterparty. who 1is.not-expe
This normally includes large prime

settling its obligations, th_us,‘«c;_-_ed_it risk-exposure 18 minimal.
financial fnstitutions and related parties.

.Sz‘andam’ Grade. -Other ﬁnar_l_c;iala;ssets not classified as high grade are included in this category.

The Company classiﬁed:!itS'fééys'h‘ :ind"c;e;sl'l cql_iiygients-(excluding'.gash-on hand), accounts receivable
ber31, 2017 and 2016. .

“and AFS investment as high’grade financial assets as af Decem

- Capital Management ‘ . _ ' |
The ;prim!pry'obje(;tive offt_ha:Compa_n}/’s-capital management,is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and_hcalthy.caplital*rdtios in order to support ifs business and maximize shareholder %
value. : o - '

ital :str.u_@ture!and_ makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in

“The Company manages itscapital i s adjust
economid conditions. “T¢ ma111t_q§n:{or.-.!adjust_:the capital:structure, the Company may adjust the

" dividend payment:to -sha'riéhcjlidefs‘, payoff existing
shares. o

debts, return.capital to shareholders or issue new

" No chanées were mad’eﬂi‘r:‘l';.‘_jche'dbjp_ct_ives,' policies or processes for the thres years ended .
December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015 el

/ tal:y gement;sundertakenbyGMA Thé-Company’s capital inciudes the
“ total equity, before other:comp e_:hj_‘_.'n't_aivéi_f‘_ihddmej‘whiéh:famduntedto 23,24 million-and

. P1.21 million as at Decémber 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

""'The Company’ s-capitalm

The Company s not-subject..focxtel‘ﬁally imposed capital rfaquirements.
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15, Financia‘lAssefs and Li'abilities .

The follo ng methods ndassun pt1ons are. used to estunate the fair: Value of each ﬁnanclal

'1ustrument for wh1c_ it to estlmate such Value

ounts Reeewable Aoeoun’cs Pavablelaed Other Current Liabilities ’ '

ST and: Due to'SHarcholders -
mstruments approx1maf.e their fair values due to the short-

Cash.and Cash Equwaients
A excludmg Deferred Quipt
The carrying: amounts.of: these financial’
term. maturltles of these ﬁnan01a1 mstruments S

AES Investment :
-The estsmated fajirwalue- of AFS debt mvestment is based on the dlsceunted values of future cash

flows. The discount-rates ‘used'were. based.onl the: spot y1eld curye. derived from govemment

_securities; of different tenors: plus ‘an estnnate of the- counterparty $ credit spread, which is based on

the ceunterparty s credit ratlng The: fa1r yalue is under level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
b

The followmg, table below demonstrates the sensitivity of credit spread (tarough the impact on other

compr ehenswe income).

Inerease' . : '
(Decrease) i Effect on Equity
: Basis Points~" " " - 2017 2016
AFS‘investment - | 50 (®566,250) (2536,113) .
: (50)- 586,968 554,042«
2017 2016 2015
“P3;029,090 B1,032,216 P635,193
' 10,000 10,000
P103.22 P63l
' {

¢ EPS is same as

The Cempany has no dllutw :_‘_,‘potentlal common shares outstandmg thel efore bas1

diluted EPS

17. Note to Statement of Cash Flows

Change m 11ab1 ity arising from. ﬁnanomg aet1v1ty is as follows:

| o T Deelaratlon -
Jenuary 1,2017 - of dividends -Cash flows used December 31, 2017
©P2,689" R1,000,0000 (£995,640) B3,045

Dividends payable
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- 18.

‘On Aprxl:\S 2018, the Company

" income from 1ts cash and cas equ;valent< and’ AFS 1

Events after the Re'por.tinngaté :
] :
s’ BOD approved a cash- distribution to PDR holders of £0.50 per

share in relation'to dividends declared by GMA fo all shareholders of record as at April 23,2018 gnd

will be pa1d on May 16,2018.
on to-pass on: the-entire amount of the cash dividends

On the same date, the: ‘BOD; appr'OVE:d aresoluti
received from GMA without ducting;its. operatmg expenses and approyed the use of the interest
nvestment to cover for these gxpenses.

Further, the BOD approved the: Company 5 declara‘non and dlstr;bution of cash dividends amountmg

to B3.10 mﬂhon toall stookhoiders of record as‘at April-19, 2018, X

19.: Supplementary Tax Informatmn Requn ed Under

In oornphance w1th the requi

~The Company’s’ sales and recelpts are,; subj ectto output
-regxstered 1nd1v1duals QrC

T a.

Revenue Regulauons (RR) 15-2010

Iements set forth by RR 1 5 20 10 hereunder arethe information on taxes

and’ hcense fees: aceriied and pald durmg the’ taxable year.

- The Company- reported and/or pald the following types of taxes in 2017:

VAT | S |
‘ VAT Whlle jts purchases from other VAT- ;
ut. VAT The VAT rate is 12%.

‘tlons are subJ ect to inp

Net salesh ecelpts and output VAT declared in the Company s VAT returns

The Company is'a VAT-registered-Company with output VAT declaration of £208,895 for the
year | based -on the gross receipts of exercise fees of 82,490,790 as included in the “Exercise fee”
» aocount in the. statement of comprehenswe income.
+b. Input VAT e g I -
Baianee at Jannaryl 2{)17 -‘ : . o 441,598
Current year's dOI‘ﬂGSth urchasea for services ' 105,574
Total input’ VAT~ 547,172
pphed against output VAT (298,893}
Balance at Deoember 31 A P248,277
ol P
Other Taxes and Llcenses }':' L .
All other Hocal and nanonal taxes paid for the year ended, December 3 1,2017 consist of: ~
Looal taxes and ,11ee115e-fees : , p34,511
: 500

‘Registration fees
R ' 735,011
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_Withhold.jin,ql Taxes' - S
‘Withholding taxes:paid and/orwithheld for-the year ended December 31, 2017 consist of:

257,891,880
11,568
$57,903,448

.Finafi‘-.‘w_‘i‘thhpldiqg tax .
_Bxpanded withholding tax

4

- Tax Ass ssments-and C
' Asat Degember:31;2017
~Bureau of Intérnal;{Rev.énu
the admirf}istraticn-:_df'%he-BIR___} :

a3e, o C : . ‘
thexCompany has no final tax 5assessments‘=and cases pending before the

-_IR)i’ifL‘\'ikew‘ise,';.the‘;Gompany; has no other pending tax cases outside
a‘ft-:-D‘ecmnber..B 1,2017. ‘ ;

b
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:.lNDEPIZNDENT AUDITOR.. " REPORT. '
ON SUPPLEMENTARY S(‘HEDULE.‘:

The Board. OfDlrectors and Stockholders _

GMA Holdings, Inc. - [ S )
5D, Tower One;-One: Mckml
~ . New Global; Bomfamo Clty'-.-
: Fo1tB0n1faolo Taguig City -

" We have audlted in accordance with’ Philippine Standards on Auditmg, the financial statements of GMA

‘Holdings,. Inc as :at'Decembe 017 and: 2016 an fiille-three years in the period ended
<December 3L 2017, 187 Our-audits were. made Tor

- sthe” purpose offer Ken:as a:whele.The- schedules
“Jlisted in the Index:t0:the it [es-are the respons:blhty of the
'Company s management ¢ The €50 complymg with Securities

- Regulation Code Rule 68, As: Amen'ded‘(i{). the'basic financial statements. These

schedules haye been subjected [0 the‘faudltm g proccc'lw res: the audit of the basic financial
statements- and inour ; Ster e mformatxon requ1red io be set forth

~thereinin :elatlon to the ba

-

| SYCIPGORRESVELAYO&CG | i

T[(wg!%w

: ,Belmda T. Beng Hu;
. Partner : :
" CPA Cemﬁcate No 88823 p
SEC Accreditation No. 0923- AR-Z (Gréup"A},
May 1, 2016, valid ntil May 1,2019 .
Tax Identlﬁcatwn No, 153-578-243 3
BIR. Aocredltatxon No. 08- 001998 -78-2015, : )
June 26, 2015, valid untit Ju 61;25 2018

PTR No. 6621231 ]anuaryQ 2 _8_'Makat1 Cl‘ry

April 5, 2013
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

TNDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DECEMBER 31, 2017

I) Annex68-E

A

B.

Finéncial Assets

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Em}ﬂoy_ees, Related Parties
and Principal Steckhelders (Other than Related Parties)

Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Fliminated during
the Consolidation of Financial Statements '

Intangible Assets and Other Assels
Long-term Debt

Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related
Companies)

Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

Capital Stock

Additional Components

i

111)

V)

List of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Effective asat
December 31, 2017

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

Sehedule of Financial Ratios

Attached

Not applicable .

Not applicable

Not appticable
Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Attached

Attached

Attached

Attached



B . GMA HOLDINGS INC
: Index: to.the Fmancxai Statements and

Suppiementqry Schedules -
December 31, 2017

Schedule I Supplementary Schedules Reqmred by Annex. 68-E

Schedﬁlaﬂ: JList of: Plull 1n F-manmal Reportmg Standards (PFRS) and Interpretat1ons as at -
' L -December.'?)‘lf‘" 01! ‘

ScheduleTIL: Reconmhaﬁon of Rétained BEarnings A.vailabie for Dividend Declaration

Scheduielf\f Schedule of: Fmanclal Ratios



SCHEDULE X

GMA HOLDINGS INC
Supplementary Schedule E‘Requlred by Ann_ex:,;GS'—E .
'~December 31,2017 0 o '

.Schedule'A.‘Financial Ass‘ets L
Amount shown in
the statements of  Income received

Name of issuing entity and association.of each issue financial position and accrued
Cash and éas!fequivalents" R - :

Cash on hand R o o 22,300 P
Cashin bank Union Bank oft_w__"._‘hilipp‘ines_- B oo 2,808,624 7,667

R 2 - ' ‘ 2,810,924 haeT7

Cash eguivaients - UnijcapitalInc. : ‘ 25,994,495 780,048

! o R ‘ C 28,805,419 - R787715

‘ _Available-for-sale_iinvestmeﬁf 20,570,501 1,131,545

LS

Sehedule’B.Amounts Recewable from Dlrectm s {Officers,
. Prmcxpal‘swckholders (Other ._;__han Related Pal tles)

Employees, Related Parties and

o Deductlons T

Ealancs as a o . Balance as at
"urrent..-! Noncurrent December 31, 2017

January] 201

- Namc and
-:demgnat}on

‘i
k
|

_ &

: *NotApphoable ‘The. Compa ‘

: 5-:'ipr1nc1pa1 stockh

Schedule C Amounts of’ Recewables and- Payable fr om/te Related Partles which are Ehmmated
during Consohdatlon Pro of: Flnancxal Statements ;

: . - 'Deductions

om d1rectors ofﬁcer employees, relaied parties and

ecewa‘ole fr
Decermber 31, 2017,

ders_(other than related partles) asat

-

- Amount: Amount Balance as at
December 31, 2017

Name and Ralance as at ‘
desiggationsj © January .1,2017 Addmons collected ~written off _ Current Naoncurrenf

Ni'ot-App 1cable The Company has no receivabie from/payab}e to related parties which are
e consohdated asat December 31 2017, ‘

Y

Schedule D Intangible Assets - .Otl;e:f. Assets
Other changes:
Charged to cost addittons

:‘ Beginning - _
Description balance - Additions at cost and expenses (deductions) Ending balance

_Desoription DR T
“Not ,Apélicab'_lé: Thc Compary has no-intangible asset as &t December 31,2017,

-




,Schedule.:E. Long-term-Debt-

Title of iésue and typé of ~ . authorized
obligation L

Not Applicable: The Company has

. “sAnjount Amount shown under caption
- «Cyrrent portion of long term caption “Long-term debt”

b indenturs debt” in related balance sheet in related balance sheet ]

SCHEDULE I

]

Amount showr\under

o long-term debt as &t December 31,2017,

_Schedulej.éli’:, In debtednesstuRelated Partles

:‘(an"g:{)éngm‘_LQails from Related Parties)

-

Balaﬁce at Balance at
v 1, 2017 December 31, 2017

¢ Name o'f,felellt'éd;"" arty January
_érm’loan from a-rela{'ed party as-at December 31, 2017,

Not Aﬁpliéable:‘ The Cempany.has 10 -loﬁg

..Sched ulé';p."f.Gl.l'%._lf antee

" Name ofissting entity of
w 'S_eouritiQs_i(gu_afanteéd by.th

. " each-class.of
Company for which this -+

" securities

Securities of Other Issuers

itle ofidssue.of

st;atemant:-@is fled . . guarantced ‘

a

; 'Fo_%tal-aamount * Amount owned by .
. guaranteed and  person for which the Nature of . 1
7 outstanding - statement is filed guarantee

&

Not Applicab_l;g":“Th': Copi any ]

Qha_s‘iw;_‘,nof;g\_‘x‘a.rqﬁtegs_"Qf,‘_sﬁolcurities of other issuers as at

mber 3152017 -

Dece:

Schedule.inI. Capitél'Stc‘Jck’ .

: e -,_._"_;_'_Number of-
| C “shares issued -

o 7outstanding:
e as:shown
Number - sunder. related
3 of shares. “balance sheet
- Title of issue authorized .. -caption.

. Numbc_f o Y
" ofshares ]

o and: - reserved for

options, _
warrants, Number
- conversion  of shares held Directors,
' and other by related  officers, and
Others

- rights.” parties employees

- 10,000

~

Common stock™ 0,000 - - 110,000



GMA HOLDINGS ENC

SCHEDULE IT -

-

- List of. ].Thlilppllle Fmanelal Repmrt
As at: December 31, 2017 ‘

ing Stan dards (PYRS)and Interp retations

Amendments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4%

' Framework for the Preparatlon andi Presentatmn of Fmanmal
Statements _ v { ;
| Conceptual Framework Phase A Ob_] ectlves and. quahtatwe characteristics
“ PFRSs Px%a'etiee'sltatement Management Commentary : ' v
Philippine:‘Fineneia‘l Repo rting: Standards k N
PFRS1 | | First-time Ade_pt;on of Phlhppme Financxal Reportmg v
(Revised), 1&tandards t
Amendmentsto PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Investment v
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Contralled Entity or Associate )
Amendments 1o PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First- \ v
i |time Adopters”
G Amendment 0 PFRS!: Limited Exemption from v
[ Comparative, PERS 7 Disclosures for First:time: Adopters
Amendments (0'PFRS 1: Severe Fiypetinflation aud Y
- Removal of Fixed Date for First- ‘time Adopters’
A Amendments 1o PPRS 1 Government Loans v
- ‘ T =
~ | PFRS 200 v
s - aetates 2 v
Cancellations -
‘L Amendments 40, PFRS 2. _G_.ro,up Cas_}}-_'sett_l_ed .}S_heg_:ef__’t;‘ased v
Payment Transactlon S COEE T T .
. .Amen S'2: Definitio : v
o Amendments £0: PFRS 2: Cl.iss1ﬁcat;0n and Measurement X
- { of Share-base ;.Payment Transact;ons* Not Barly Adopted i
PFRS3 | - |Business Combinations ' v
(Rewsed)? Amendment i0 PFRS3: Accounting for Ccntmgent v
} Consideration in-a Busmess Combinafion
' Amendment“to;P_FRS&. Scepe Exceptions for Joint v
. Arrangements : L
|PFRS 4 | . |Insurance Cortracts v
: Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee v
: Cantracts : A

Not Early Ad

opted . J




i
i
i
i
i
i
i
1
i
{

SCHEDULE It

7 Standard

PFRS 5 | | Non-current Assé’t“s‘Hel'd for Sale ané‘Diséonti—nﬁ@d‘- S
: QOperations’ '
Amendments.to PFRS.5: Changes in Methods of Disposals™ v
PFRS 6 i Exploration for-and Evaluation of Minefal Resources v
PFRS 7 | Fmanmal Instruments Disclosures ' )
iy Amendments to PAS 39 and PERS 7: Reclassification of v 1
Financial Assels
; Amendments 1o PAS 39 and PFRS.7: Raclasmﬁcatmn of s
é Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving D1scIosures about
; Fmanc:al Instruments ‘ .
| | Amendments o’ PFRS 7: Disclosures= Transfers of ‘ N v
-1 Financial Alssets ;
Amendments 10y PFRS_,? Dlsclosures Offsettmg Fmancxal v
"] Assets and. Fmanclal_ Llabilmcs . :
Amendments to PFRS'7: Mandatory Effrsctwe Date of PFRS‘ ‘ v
! |9 and Transition Disclosures.. oo
Amendments 0. PFRS 7 Disclosures - Seryicing Contraots v
e Amendments 10 FRS ‘::Appllcabl ity of:the Amendments v
S ' : ensed Interim Fmanma] Stataments : ‘
: PERS 871 Operatmg Segme 50 S S Y
i+ = Amendments o PFRS 8 Aggre'gatmn of Operatlng
] A Segments and’ Reconcﬂlatlon of the. Total.of the Reportab v
4 - w2t Segments’ Assets 1o the Entity’s Assets”
| PFRS 9- | - | Financial Instruments* ' Not Early Adopted
' ‘ - | Amendments to 'PERS 9: Pre’payment Featurcs weith Not Early Adopted .
‘ ! Negative Compensatlon* - y P
PFRS 10: | Consolidated chmcxal Stat:ément's" v
! | Amendments to PERS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27; Investment y
Entities 3
Amendments fo PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28: Investment v
Entities: Applying the Consolldatlon Excéption
[ PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements v
L Amendments to; PFRS 11 Accoun‘tmg for Acqu151t10ns of s
| |Interests in: Joint Operations
PFRS 12  |Disclosure. ofIntcrests in: Other Entities v
" [mendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27: Investment v
- Entities '
| Amendments to PERS 10, PFRS 12,010 PAS 28; Y
| Investments Entmes Appiymg the: Consohdatlon Exceptxon
f Amcndment 1o PFRS 128 Clarlﬁcatmn ofithe Scopc of the Y




SCHED}JLE ..IIJ

PFRS 13 | Fair Value Measmement
» Amendment to PFRS 113 Shert-tewm: Receivables and - v ~
.| Payables .
. ‘f‘_ Ar'nendr'nent" v
C|pERS 144 '} Aceol , v
. PFRSJIS;L e Revenue frorn Con’t‘racts with Customels* Not Barly Adopted
pFRS 161 |Leases* | o Not Early Adopted
Phl]lppme Accountmg Standards ,
“|PAS 1 ‘[. L Presentatlon of. Fxnanclai Statements v
(Revised) -
| (Revk -e,)i. o Amendment 0 PAS 1 Capltal Disclosures v {
| [Amendments to PAS 52 end PAS T: Putable Fmanc;al, ] | L,
o Tnstruments ‘and Obligations Arising on Liquidation’ .
.| Amendments {0 'PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other v
b Comprehensive*lncome '
Amendments’ to PAS 1: Clarification of the Requnements s - :
"1 for. Comparanve Infoxmatwn o
| [Amendments 1o PAS: Dls_qlo_,sur.d.'Initiati?_e;—t.‘ s v/ |
[Pasz | . [mventories . S | %
PAS7 {Statement of Cash Flows v .
j Amendments .,to-}PAS 7. Disclosure [nitiative v
IpASS. | Aecountingf?o}i'(::'ie's',‘:_Chang_e’s in_Aecount_i.ng Estimates and | '
i [Errors Y -
%\ Byents “after the! Reportmg Period:” Y
= Censtructlon Conh*acts o L - Ve
| Income Taxes " o L - v :
Amendment t0; PAS 12 Defe1 red Tax Reeovery of . v
UnderlymgAssets '
‘ : )
1t L(d Equlpment ‘ v
Amendmmerts to PAS 167 Cl sszﬁca‘c[on of. Serwemg S ' ' .
“| Equipment. .
| Amendment to PAS 16 and:PAS 38: Revaluation Method - B
. Propor’uonate Restatement of Accumuiated Depreciation and 4
Amortization . ‘
: Amendment to’PAS 16 and PAS 38: ‘Clarification.of v
_ Aeeeptable T\/Iethods of Deprec1at10n -and’ Amort:zatmn :
R Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 47" Bearer Plants’ v
|pAS17 | {Leases . ' v




SCHEDULE IT

PAS 18 5 - |Revenue
PAS19 | ' . |Employeel Beneﬁts ; _ _
(Revise -); S Amendments 0" PASHO Actuarlal Gains. and Losses,wGroup" T v
' Plans and Disclosures’ . '
Amendments to PAS 19: Deﬁned Benefit Plans: Employee _ .
Contribution : :
Amendments to PAS 1%: Regional Market Issue Regarding. " )
i Discount Rate: :
PAS 20 1| Accounting. for-Government. Grants and Disclosure of RN v
i GovernmentAss‘.lstance : Coo T S ‘ ' !
PAS 21 ‘ 1'The Effects of-Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates v
Amendment: Net Investment'in a Foreign Operation v
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs v
_ (Revised)i |
~ |pAs24 | - - |Related Party Dlsciosures S e 5;, v
‘“.“(Re‘w“s e‘_f‘)‘i: i Amendmentst \ '24 "'Key Management Personnel ey - .
PAS 26 b .Accountmg and Reportmg, by.Retir ement“Beneﬁt Plans v
PAS 27 . ) Separate Fmanczal Statements o o v
Amended) - .
( 3 e_;) v Amendments to; PFRS 10 PFRS 127 and PAS2ZT: ‘ Y
' P Investment Entities- L :
| Amendrmienits o PA 'Etin'i‘t'yiMefhndﬁin.r-Sepefeﬁe' A - o v
‘Financial Statements N IR b J e R
Amendmeénts 1o PFRS 10 PFRS 12 and’ PAS 28 .
i “|investment ‘Entities: Applying the Consohdanon 4
| FException '
.| Amendments to PAS 28: Measurmg an. Assomate orJ omt )
‘ I - Not Earl d
. .| Venture 2l Fair, Value* o : , ot Barly Adopte
Poo Amendments to’ PAS 28: Long—term Interests in .
5 Associates end Joint Ventures ‘ Not_Early_ A dopted_‘
PAS 28 Financial Reportmg in Hypennﬂanonary Eeonomies v
PAS 32 _ Finanmal Instruments: Presentation v
P Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS It Puttable Financial =~ - \
Instruments and Obligations. Arising on Liquidation”
b Amendment .to--PAS 32; 'Clesszﬁca‘non_pf R1ghts Issues. - v
| [Amendments to'PAS 32: Offseiting Financial Assets and P
i Financial Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 32; Tax Effect of Distribution to ' v
: Holders of Equity Instruments
PAS33 | |Earnings per Share v N




SCHEDULE 11

Interim Fmanmai Reportmg

Amendments to:PAS-34: Interim F1nan01a] Reportmg and S
|'Seginent. Information for Total Assets and Liabilities = ,

&)
>
[75]
W
EN

; Amendments o PAS.34: Disclosure of Information
‘Elsewhere.in’ ‘the Intenm Fmancm! R.eport’ :

PAS 30 I Impalrment ofAssets oo
Amendments: 10 PAS 361 Recoverable Amount Dlsclosures
for Non- Fmanmal Assets - : - .

PAS 37| _ -|Provisions; LCOHtlﬂgeﬂtLIabi“ﬁeS and Co'ntiﬁgent‘As'set's :

© {PAS38 .| -|IntangibleAssets .

SR RIS Amendments;te PAS38: Revaluatlon Method - o R , _
B Propomonate estatement of Accumulated Depreeiatlon-and v
| Amortization.s " - T : e . ot

| Amendment toPAS’ 16 and PAS 38! Clauﬂeetmn ofet o
Acceptable; Methods of Depreciation a ortlzatlo T

"{PAS:39 B Financial Instruments Reeogmnon and Measuremen L

Amendments to.PAS 39: Transition and Initial. Recogmtion ‘ v
of Financial Assets and Fmanclal Liabilities

| Amendments: 1o PAS 397 Cash Flow Hedge Accountmg of _3: : ,
_{ Forecast Intragroup Transactions L ‘

Amendménts to PAS 39 The Falr Value Optlon

i [ Amendments: to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financlal Guaz antee : v
t | Contracts - _ : :
. i | Amendments o PAS 39 and PFRS7: Reclasslﬁeatlou of A : \ v
g | Financial Assets ™~ _ S

Amendments to PAS 39.and PFRS.7: Reelassﬁ' cahon cf_ R - N
‘i Pinancial Assets Effectlve Date and Tlansmon S Co S 1

e Amendments {0, Phlhppme Interpz etation IFRIC 9 and o ' S
y : Sl PAS 39 Embedded Derivatives - o ‘ ‘ '

Amendment 1o PAS.39; Ehg]ble Hedged Items . .

i - Amendments o PAS 39: Novation of Der:vatwes and .- ‘ . v
{ Continuation:of’ Hedge Atcounting” : .

s Investment Property

o R Amendments tod' AS 40 Clarlfymg the Interreldtlonshlp '
-4 'l between PFRS: 3. and PAS 40 when Ciassifying. Property as - v

. Investment Property.or Owner-Oceupmd Property:.
! Amendn;ents to PA.S 40: T ransfers of. Investment Not Early Adopted
Property :

1 Agriculture
Amendmentto PAS 16 and PAS41: Bearer Plants

L PAS4O0

PAS41




{FRIC 1. |

SCHEDULE 11

JIFRIC2 | 7 - :
sl Instruments ‘ : ‘ R
FIFRICH ' Determmmg  Whether an Arrangement Contains aLease}'ﬁ . R SRR
IFRICS nghts to Interests: arising from’ Decommlsszomng, s
3 ' Restoration and’ Envirenmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 | Liabilities arising: from Pammpatmg in‘a. Specnf'lc Market - _ v
: Waste Electrical’and, ‘Electronic Equipment : .
IFRIC 7 - Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS29 Flnapq_ial so1
Reporting in Hyperinflationary! Economies’ KT ‘
. e
IFRIC S ! . |Reassessment of Embedded Derlvatwcs ' _ ' v
| ]
N . Amendments to- Ph:l;ppme Interpretatlon [FRIC 9 and B ' N
i PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives ' E : .
¢ T '____—n—-—'"’—'_'_____,,_—-r———'_d__,_.__—v—‘—-
IERIC 10 Interim Financial chortmg, and‘Impairment RN S . '
IFRIC 12: ServiceConcesslo'n‘Arraﬂgements : ' eV
[FRIC 13/ | Customer Loyalty-Programines . . v
|1FRIC 14 |The, Limit on 4 Dcf’med BeneﬁtAsset Mlmmum Fundmg : v -
' SR Reqmrements and, their Intﬂ action . . P
. b Amendments fo. Phllipplne Interpretat:ons IFRIC 34, S
t .. | Prepayments of: a Minimum Fundmg Reqmrement .
- — .
. imen peration ‘ 1 v
|trRIC 18 Transfers of Assets f10m Customers o ] | Y ‘
. [ St
IFRIC19; - o Extmguzsbmg i anc:al Liabilities? w;th Equxty Instruments ) : ' v
) B =z L R e |
IFRIC20: . .| Stripping Costs in‘the Productmn Phase of'a Surface Mine . AT
______,__,,_..m——m—". T ey |
ATIFRIC2Y - = |Levies ' o ‘ ' ' v q .
_ )
C : R
Foreign. urrency Transartlons and Advance | Not Early-Adopted !

| I

JIFRIC23

e ——1

SIC-7
S1C-10

- |s1C-15
| s1c-25

SIC-27

IFRIC 22 -

L

A —

i

1

L e——]

e —

Cons1deratzon* o

Uncertainty over Incomc.Tax'Treatmen’tsf*‘

Introduchon of thc Euio

]
Government Assistance - No Specific RC]atLOD to Oper atmg
Operating Leases - Incentives ' v
___—MM
es ~ Changes in the Tax Stafus. of an Entipy', or its

Activities

Income. Tax:
Shareholders

Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the

- Legal Form ofa Lease

SIC-29 ¢ Service Concession Arrangemems Disclosures

Not Barly Adopted

] s




SIC-31

Revénue'- Bé

arter Transactions -Im}o’].ﬁing Advertising:
| Services A
SI1C-32 [ Intanglble Assets “Web Slte Costs

*Srandards ana’ znterpretarions whzch will become eﬁ%crzve subsequenf fo De

Effectivity ofAmena‘nwnrs to PFRSI0

Jolnt Venture was deferred,

Nore: Srandards and Inierpremnons tagged as Not dpplical
aa‘op;‘ed bur the entity has no srgmfcant covered transaction

cember 3] 2017

and PAS 28, Sale or Cont: zbunon ofA.sseIs berween an

as “al andfor the ye P ended December

ble” -are those se‘andards and interprelations which were -

31,2017

[nvestor and its Associate o¥

-
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dend])eclal‘aﬂon o

L P1,107223
3,029,090
(1,000,000)
.3_3_.1363.13- o

Page|11.
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" GMABOLDINGS,ING, ~
- Schedule of FinancialRatios” ~

- December 31
2017 2016
0.63 . - 058 ¢
17.99 4718
16.99 - 46.18

- Financial Ratios~
-Current/hqmd]ty ratlo

Asset to equity ratio:
Debt to equity ratio’”

' -='Des;‘;rfipﬁmi=f

Finandial'Ratios . 2015\ -
Return onsequity . *Nepin ;

Return on asset: ¢t income; over totai assats
EBITDA margin Earnmgs before mterest tax: and

«Jepreciation and amomzatlon over----'i . SR
totalrevenue R S 76.48% 57.55% 48.91%

132%

Yeals ended December SIS



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
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TREASURER’S CERTIFICATION §<i*=,,.‘-L APRN] } 2018 } T
| | N mem Pl

3 AUGPECT 10 REVIEw OF
IACONTENTS

| S
I, FELIPE S. YALONG, of legal age, Filipino and with office address at’ GMA Crompte=s
EDSA corner Timog, Diliman, Quezon City, after being sworn in accordance with iaw,

hereby certify that:

| I am the Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., a corporation duly organized and existing
under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the Philippines under SEC Certificate
of registration CS200602356 with the principal office at Unit 5D Tower One, One
Mckinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

5 The General Form for Financial Statements (“GFFS™) Compact Disc submitted contains
the same basic and material data in the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation.

3. I am executing this certification to attest to the truth of the foregoing and in cempliance

with the reportorial requirements of the SEC.
s BKATICITY

’ i Ladd
Witness my hand on this éﬁ? ok 1 b at City of

Ackuowledgéme

| CUUAPR 11 2018
: SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this,.. _day of
affiants exhibited to me his TIN 102-874-052 (Felipe S. Yalong).

tl

atw.ammm

Doc. Ne. 2

Page No. #;/%
Book No. _ ze8
Series of 2018

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Boni
iman,Quezpn.Clt

Unit 5-D Tower One, City 1634 Philippines __

VAILING ADDRESS: GMA Network Center, EDSA cor Timog Ave, Dil ‘_ y 1103 Philippines .
Telephone No. (632) 982-7777 loc. 8001 Fax (632) 928-5133 - e



Cantrol No.: $5206602356
Form Type:  GFFS (rev 2005)

GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, One NcKinley Place, New Bonifacie Glebal City, Taguig City
TEL. NO.: 982-7777 loc 8001/388¢8 FAXNO.

COMPANY TYPE ! Helding Company : PSIC:

[F these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so Indicale in the capfion.
Table 1. Balance Sheet

ST 2016

FINANCIAL DATA ”
{in Philippine Pesc)
A AGSETS (A1 +AZ+AJ+ALY Ab+AB+ATTABRYAYEAN0) 50,505,459 48,710,825
A1 Current Assets (A1 1 +A12+A3 +A4+A1E 29,834,958 27,885,561
.11 Cash and cash equivalents AT AL T2, A,1.1.3) 28,805,419 26,588,153
A.1.1.1 Onhand 2,700 5,000
£.1.1.2 In domestic banksientities 28,802,718 96,883,153
A1.1.3 Inforelgn banksigntites ‘ -
A1.2 Trade and Other Receivables {A1.21+A127) ' 881,262 555,810
121 Due from domestic entities (A1.2.11+A1.21.2 +A1213+A1214) 881,262 555,810
A4.2.1.1 Due from customers {trade) ' 760,075 413,660
A.1.2.1.2 Due from related parties
A1.2.13 Others, specify (A.1.2.1 3.1+A.1.21.3.2) 121,187 142,150
A1.2.13.1 Interest Receivable 121,167 142,150

A1.2.1.3.2 Others
24214 Allowance for doubtful accounts (negative antry)
2492 Due from foreign entifies, specify )
(Afd21+A13.22+A03 23 +AL3ZA
A1.2.21
A1222
41223
A4 2.2.4 Allowance for doubtiul accounts (negative entry}
13 Toventories (8131 +A132 TAl33+Al134+A135+A135)
7131 Raw materials and supplies
A1.3.2 Gaods in procsss (including unfinished goods, growing Crops, ynfinished
A 41.3.3 Finished goods
A1.3.4 Merchandlsa/Gooos in trangit
155 Unibiied Services (i case of senvice providers)
A.1.3.6 Others, speclly (A1.36.14A.138.2)
A13.6.9
A1382
A44 Financial Assets ofher than CashiRecaivatles/Equity investments

A143+A144+Aj45+ﬁ\146)
141 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Proft or Loss - issued by domestic

entities (A 1411 +A 1412 +A1413+A1414+A14.15)

1441 National Governmant

51442 Public Financla! instiutions

Ai413  Public Non-Financil Institutions

A1414 Prvate Financlal Institutions

n1445  Prvaie Non-Financial Instiutions _
442 Held to Maturity investments - fssued by domestic entities
(A4.2.1 +ATA22+A1423 A1.4.24 +A14.25)
A1421 National Goverfiment

A1422 Pyblic Financial Institutions

A1423  Public Non-Fingngial Institutions E—
1424  Private Financial Institutions
n1405  Private Non-Financiat Institutions

(A14.1+ATAZ -

NOTE:
This general form i applicatle

acturing, Eleciricity, Gas and Water, Construction, Vfthplagale and
s, olker forms of production, ane ganaral business
anios and thoga engaged in

le companies gngaged in Agricufture, Fishery, Forestry, Mining, and Quarrying, Man
Retait Trade, Transportation, Storage and Gommunicgtions, Hotefs and Restaurants, Real Estate, Commurity, Social and Personal Service
operations. This form is also applicable to other companies that do not have industy-specific Spacial Forms. Special forms shall be used by pudlsy-
non-bank financial intermesiation sclivities, oradit granting, end activifies aukiliary to financial inermediation, which require secondary license from SEC.

hes/subsidiaries of foreign corporalions thet &72 ligenead to do husiass in the Phifnnines whers
foraign corporations are those that are incorporated abroad, ingiuding branches of Phi

Domestic corparations ara those which are ncorporated under Philipging laws or branc uhe
inping

{he center of =conomic interest oF actiity is within the Philippinee. On the other hand,

carporations operating abroad. .

Finangial Institutions are corporations principally engaged in fnancial intermediation, facilftating financial Intermediation, or auxifary financial sendces, Nen-Financial ingtitutions refer (o
7 maske! goods and ron-Francial sarvices.

corporations that are primarily engaged in tha productian @
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Controf No.: C5§200602358
Form Typse: GFFS {rev 2006)

GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NAME CF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 50 Tower One. One McKinley Place, New Bonlfacio Global City, Taguig City

TEL. NO.: 082-7777 loc 3001/8889 FAXNO.:

COMPANY TYPE : Holding Company F3IC:

ifthese are pased on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate it the ¢aption.
Table 1. Balance Sheet

_ 1T 7078
FINA NCI AL D ATA . fin Phiﬁﬁp,‘!r‘ne Peso)

A1.4.3 Loans and Recelvables - issued by domestic entities:
(A1a31+A1432+A1433 ¢ ATEE +ALAIA)
A4431 _ National Government
A143.2  Public Financial institutions
AT433  Public NonFinangla! Institutions
A1434  Private Flnancial Institutions
A1435  Private Non-Financial Institutions . :

A14.4 Ayaiiable-for-sale financial assels - issued by domestlc entities: 20,570,501 20,825,264

(AMM+A1442+A1443+A1M4+A1445!

21441 National Government

ArA47  Public Financialinsfitutions

41443 Public Non-Finangial Insfitutions

Ald4d _ Private Financighinstiutions 20,570,501 0.325

1445  Private Non-Financial ngfitutions .

inanci issued by forel ttles, (A.1,45 _52+A1.453+A1454) -
A1451 inangi ets at fair val nroush profitorloss
A1A57  Held-tg-matutity [nvesiments

A1AE3 _ Loans and Receivables
A1454  Avallable-forsale financial assets

Al

A 4.6 Allowance for decline in market value (negative anfvl
.15 Other Cuprent Assets (sfate separalely material ilemss (A 151+A152+A1D 3) 248.277 441,58
1.5, Prepald Tax Asset . - -
A.1.5.2 Input Vat ' 248,277 _ 441,598 |
A15.3
4.2 Property, plant, and equipment (A2 +A2.2+ Ao3+A24+A2SYALE +A2.7+A.2.8] -
A2.1 Land
A.77 Buiding and improverments including leasehold improvement
A.2.3 Machinery and equipment (o hand and in transil
A24 Transnortationimotor vehicles, automotive squipment, autos and trucks, and defivery squipment
A.2.5 Others, specify (A.2.5.1 VA052+A2E3 +A25A+A2GE)
A.25.1 Property, or equlpment ussd for education purposes
4,252 Construction in progress ]
A253
AZ54
AZ255
A.2.6 Appraisal Increase, specify (A.26.1 +A.26.2 +A26.3+A264)
A26.1
A26.2
A26.3
264 :
A7 Accumulated Depreciation {negative entny)
2 & Impalrment Logs or Reversa {If lose, neqative eniry) .
A3 Investmenis acco ymigd for using the squity method (A3 +A32 +A3.3) -
. ity in d o subsidiartesfaffilialas
A.3.2 Egulty in foreian pranches/subsidiaries/affiliztes
A3.3 Cihers. spacify (A.3.1 {+A3.21+A331+A33 4)
A3.31
A332
AJd33
A334 e ——]
| A4 Investment Property : -
5 Biological Ass e
—Mﬂ—;___ﬂ—fJ—F

M@M&M.BZ\

AB.24
7 Assels Ciassified as Heid for Sale _,,___,_MM
A8 Assetsinclided Disosal Groups Classified a3 Held fo Sale
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GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATICN: GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

Confrol No.: CS200602356
Form Type: GFFS frev 2006)

Global Gity, Taguig City

CURRENT ADDRESS: " 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, Ne?j Bonifacio
FAXNO.:

TEL. NC.: §82-7777 toc 8001/8888 :
COMPANY TYPE: Holding Company

PSIC:

ments, please so indicafe if the caption.
Table 1, Balance Sheet

If these are based on consolidated financial sfate

201%

FINANGIAL DATA

2017
fin Phifippine Peso)

oo ecalvables (netof current portion) (A9 +A.9.2 + AS.3)
£.9:1. From domestic entities, specify (A9.11+A0912+A013 +A.8.1.4)

A9.1.1

AS12

AB13

Ag.14

A.0.2 From foreign entities, specify (A.9.2.1 +A022+A023+A824)

A9.2]

A8.22

AD23

A3.24
2 ion {1 i i)

.03 Allowance for doubtful accounts. I

ts, e
A0 Other Asgets (A10.1 +A,10.2 + AIC 3+A104+A.10.5)

1 Deferrad charaes - nef of amorl ation

2 Deferred Income Tax

A10
A0
A 10.3 Advance/Miscellanagus denosiis
AQ

4 Others, specify (21041 +A104.2 4,10 43+A10.44)

A10.4.1 Deferred Tax Asset

A104.2

A1043

A1044

1 lowance for write-down of deferred cha a‘fﬁgﬁaccgunl&(nggaﬂvgentrv}

47.698.643

47,678,338

B, LlAB<[L|TIES (B1+B2+B.3+BA4+B.5)

A7.688.645

47 678,338

B.1 Curent Liabitles (81,1 +B. 1.2+ B.1 3+ BlA+D15+8,16+B1T7)

47,695.596

47,672,142

B.1.1 Irade and Other Pavables to Domestic Entities

B.1.1.1 LoansMotes Payables

55845

9.643 |

B.1.1.2 Trade Pavablgs

47,271,800

47,271,600

B.1.1.3 Payables fo Related Parties, specify (B.1.1.31+ B1132+B1133)

B.1.1.3.1 Due to shareholders

47,271.600

47,271,600 |

B.1.1.32

81133
B.1.1.4 Others, specily {B.14.4.1+B.1.142+ B.1.1.4.3)

388,151

350,880

81437

44,321

B.1.1.4.1 Deferred quiput YAT

276.714

346,559

B.1.1.4.2 Accrued Expenses

B.1.143

B10.1+8.1.2.28.123+8.124)

B.1.2 Trade and Other Payables to Forsign Entities (specify) {

B.1.21

B122

B.1.2.3

B.1.2.4

R 1.3 Provisions ‘
814 Financial Liabifties.(excluding Trade and Cther Payables and Provisions}

B.141+8142+8.143)

B.14.1
B.142

B.1.4.3

3526 |

B.14.4

B.15 Ljahiliies for Gurrant Tax

ties
B.1.7 Others, specify (If material, siate saparately; indicate i

the llem is payable to public/private

3,040

2,689

or financialinon-financial institutions}

3,048

2,688

B4 7.1 Dividends deciared and not paid &t balance sheet dale

B.1.7.2 Acceplances Pavable

B.1.7.3 Lizbilities under Trust Raceipls

B.1.7.4 Portion of Long-telm Debt Dug within ane year

B,1.7.5 Peferred income
B.1.7.5 Any ofher current lizbillty in excass of 5% of Tolal Current Liabillites, specify:

+ + +

B.1.7.6.

B.1.7.6.2
B.1.7.6.3

B.1.7.8.4
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Contrg! Mo.: C5200602356

Form Type: T GFFS (rev 2006)
GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCHAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, IKC, . .
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower Gne, One McKinley Place, New Boniacio Globa City, Taguig City
TEL.NO.: 982-7777 loc 800178859 FAXNO.:
COMPANY TYPE : Holding Company PEIC:
If these are based on consolidated Fnancial slatemants, please so indicate in the capfion. —_—
Tahfe 1. Balance Sheet
2UTY PLEL
i Fi NAN CIAL DATA fin thh'pg!fne Paso}
B.2 ong-ierm Debt - Nom-currert Interest-bearing Liabifities (821 +8.22+ B.73 +B.2.4 +B.2.5) -
8.2.1 Damestic Public Financial Institutions:
B.2.2 Domestic Public Non-Financlal Instiuions
8.2.3 Domestic Private Financial Institutions
B.2.4 Domestic Private Non-Financial Institutions
B.2.5 Foreign Financlal Institutions .
8.3 Indebtedness to AFiliates and Related Parties {Non-Current)
8.4 Liabilities Included In the Disposal Groups Classified as Held for Sale - -
B5 Cther Liabilities (B.5.1 +B5.5.2) - -
B.5.1 Deferred Income Tax
B.5.2 Otheis, specify (B.5.2.1 + B522+B523+B524)
85,21
B52.2
B.5.2.3
B.5.24
C. EQUITY (C.3+C.4+C5+ C6+C7+CE+C9+C10) 2,806,814 1,032,487 |
C.1 Authorized Capital Stock {no. of shares, par value and folat value; show defails) 100,000 100,000
+C1.2+0 1.3
G.1.1 Common sharss [16,000 shares par value of P10 100,000 . 100,000
C.1.2 Preferred Shares
.1.3 Others
¢ 2 Subscribed Capital Stock {no. of stiares, par value and tofal value] (€2.1+C22 +C.2.3) 100,000 100,000
C.2.1 Common shares 10,000 shares par vaiue of P40 100,000 100,000
.22 Preferred Shares ‘
C.2.3 Others
C.3 Paid-up Capital Siock (¢.3.1+C.3.2) 100,000 100,000
C.3.1 Common shares MOG shares par vaiue of P10 100,000 100,000
£.3.2 Proferred Shares )
T4 Additional Paid-n Capital / Capital in axcess of par value | Paid-in Surplus
.5 Minority Inferast - :
.6 Othars, spacify {CB.A+0B2+ C63+C.64+CE5) {425,498} 174,736
a4 Unrealized loss on. avafiable-for-sale investment 1429,499) {174,736)
CG.2
8.2
C64
ChS e
C.7 Appraisal Surg!uszevamatlon_!ncrement in Property/Revaluation Surplus i - -
.85 Relained Earmings (C.8.1+C.82) 3138313 1,107,223
¢.58.1 Unappropriated 3,136,313 1,107,223
C.8.2 Appropriated
C.8 Head / Home Office Account {for Foreign Branches only} - -
]
48,710,825

D. TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY {B+C}

C.10 Cost of Stocks Held In Treasury (negative entry) -
‘ 50,505,459
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GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

Controf No.: 08200602358

Form Type:

GFF§ (rev 2006)

City, Taguig City

CURRENT ADDRESS: 50 Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global
TEL. NO.: 982-7777 loc 8001/8689 FAX NO.:

COMPANY TYPE: Holding Company

s

if these are based on consolidated financial sfaternents, please so indicate in.the caption.

Table 2. Income Statement

FINANCIAL DATA

2017

2016

[ 7015

(in Phifipping Peso}

4,719,348

2,505,042

2,141,860

A, REVENUE / INCOME (A1 + A2+ ASHAL)

A1 Net Salas or Revenus / Recsipts from Operations {manufacturing, mining, utilities, trade,

2,800,089

508,348

89,103

servicas, efg.) (from Primary Activity}

2.2 Share in the Profit or Loss of Associates and Joint Ventures accounted for using the

A3 Other Revanug (A3.1+ A3Z+A3.3+A34+A3D)

A.3.1 Renfal income from Land and Buildings

A.32 Receipis from Sale of Merchandise {trading) (from Secondary Activity}

£.3.3 Salg of Real Estate of other Property and Equipment

3.4 Rovaliies, Franchise Fees, Copyrignts [hooks, films, records, 16}

A35 Others, spacify (A3.5.1 TAG57+AIEI+ALEA A3EE+

A3.5.6+A3.57)

‘A.3.5.1 Rental Income, Equipment

A35.2

A353

A354

A355

A356

A3.5.7
A4 Cther income {non-operaling) (A4 +A42 +A 43+ ALL)

1,919,260

1,098,694

2,052,857

1,919,260

1,996,694

2,052,857

A1 Interest Income

A.4.2 Dividend income
243 Gain | (Loss) from selling of Assets, spacify
(Ad3l+AA32+AA3T+ALTA Y AALE+A43E +A4DT)

N

Ad3.2

A433
Ad.34

Add4 Gein/(Loss)
A4.41

oo Exchange (hA 1 +ALLL T AAAS rALA)

Ad42

Addd
Ad44
COST OF GOODS SOLD {(BA+BZ+ B.3}
B.1 Cost of Goods Manufactured {B.1.1 + BE12+B43+B14+B.15)
B.1.4 Direct Material Used
B.1.2 Direct Labar

B.1.3 Other Manufacturing Cost/ Qverhead
B.1.4 Goods in Process, Beginning
B.1.5 Goods in Process, End {negative entry)

B.7 Finished Goods. Beginnin
3 3 Finished Goods End {neyaive entry)

C. COST OF SALES (C.1+ C.2+C.3)
.1 Purchases

.2 Merchandise inventory, Seginring
.3 Mearchandise [nventory, End (negative ent
D. COST OF SERVICES, SPECIFY (D.1+D.2+ D3+ 0.4+ D5+ D.6)
D1 ‘
D.2
D3
D4
D5
D&

- ]
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GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

Controf No.: 8200802356

Form Type:

GFFS (rev-2006)

5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Benifacio Global City, Tagulg City

CURRENT ADDRESS:
TEL, NO.: 982-7777 loc 5001/8889 FAXNO.:
COMPANY TYPE ! Holding Company ‘ ' ESIC:

I these are based on consolidated finan cial statements,

Table 2. Income Statement

please so indicate [n the caption.’

FINANGIAL DATA 2017 2016 [ 2015
{in Philippine Peso)
E. OTHER DIRECT COSTS, SPECIFY E1+E.2+ E3+E4+ES+EB) - -
£
E2
E.3
E.4
E5
E.6
F. GROSS PROFIT(A-B-G-D- E} 4,719,349 2,505,042 2,141,960
G. OPERATING EXPENSES (G.i+ G.2+G.3+G4) 1,109,892 1,083,320 1,004,413
G.1 Selling or Marketing Expenses ‘
.2 Adminisfrative Expenses: 1,109,892 1,063,320 1,094,413
.3 General Expenses .
G.4 Other Expenses, specify (3.4.1 + a7 +G43+G44+G45+G46) - -
G.41 interest Exoense and Bank Charges -
G.4.2
G.4.3
G4.4
G45
(.4.6
Y. FINANCE COSTS - - -
| NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX{F -G-H} 3,609,457 1,441,722 1,047,547
7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE {negative entry) {580,367} {409,506) {412,354
K. INCOME (LOSS) AFTER TAX 3,029,090 1,032,218 635,193
L Amount of (i) Post-Tax Profit or Loss of Discontinued Operations; and (i)
Post-Tax Gain or Loss Recognized on theMeasurement of Fair Value fess
Cost to Sell or on the Disposal of the Assets or Disposal Group(s)
constituting the Discontinued Operation {if any)
L1
L2 e
M. Profit or Loss Attributable to Minority Interest
N. Profif or Loss Aftributable to Equity Holders of the Parent
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GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Control No.; ©5200802358

Form Type:

GFFS (rev 2006)

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

NAME OF CORPORATION:
CYURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New BonHacio Global City, Taguig City
TEL.NO.: 9827777 joc 8001/8888 FAXNO.:
COMPANY TYPE:  Holding Company ) PSIC:
if these are based on consolidated financial-statements, please 50 indicafe in the caption.
Table 3. Cash Flow Statements )
FINANCIAL DATA of7 ] 2016 | 2018
{in Phitippine Peso)
TASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Income {Loss) Befors Tax and Extraordinary ltems 3,609,457 1,441,722 1,047,547
Adjustments fo Reconcile Net ncome to Net Gash Provided by Operating Activitles )
Depieciation
Amartization, specify:
Others, specify: Interest income (1,819,260} (1,596,694) (2,052,857}
Tnterest expense and bank charges - - -
Tnterest recelved 1,940,223 2,029,628 2,021,178
Interast paid .
‘ income taxes paid {583,893} (406,244 {410,958
Write-down of Property, Piant, and Equipment
Changes in Assels and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increass) in:
Receivables (346,415} (389,230} 15,650
Prepaid Tax 193,321 {74,599} {64,126)
Others, specify:
Increase (Dacrease) In:
Accounts payable and acerued expenses 23,833 37,033 124,580
Withholding taxes payable - - .
Others, specify. Dueto sharsholders - - -
F Net Cash Provided by (Used Ty Oparating Activifles (sum o above TOWS) 2,917 26b 641512 550,375
TAEH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) Decrease in Long-Term Receivables
(increase) Decrease in Investment
Reducions/(Adaitions) 1o Property, Piant, and Equipment
Cthers, specify: . C
B ol Cash Provided by (Used in} [Avesting Activities (sur oi above TOWS) - - -
TREHA FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Loans
Long-term Debt
Issuance of Securities
Others, specify. Payment of avallable-for-sale investment
Payments of:
{Loans]
{Long-term Debi)
{Stock Subseriptions)
Others, specily (negatiye entry):
Payment of cash dividends {1,000,00C} (600,000} w
ENot Cash Provided iy (Used i Flnencing Activities {sux of AoV fows) T 500,000 (600,000) (495 555)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND TAGH EQUIVALENTS (A+B +C) 1,917,266 41,612 181,320
ash and Cash Equivalents
et ggdinﬂing o?ye:r 25,888,153 26,848,541 26,665,221
"EAG of year 76 505,419 1900, e,
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Control No.; C5200602356

Form Type:

CIAL STATEMENTS
GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

GENERAL FORM FOR FINAN
NAME OF CORPORATION:

e
GFFS (rev 2006)

One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global Gity, Taguig City

CURRENT ADDRESS: 50 Tower One
A T FAX NC.:

982-7777 local 8001/8889

TEL. NO.:
COMPANY TYPE
If these are based on consolldated financial statements,

Holding Company F3IC:

please so indicafe i the caption.
Table 4. Statement of Changas In Equity

{in Phillpplne Pas)

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on AFS
Investment - Nat of
Tax

Transtation
Differences

Revaluation
Incrament

Additiona! Paid

Capital Stock in Capital

FINANGIAL DATA

Retained
Earnings

TOTAL

(194,477}

675,007

580.530

100.000

A, Balance, 2015

A1 Correction of Error(s

"0 Changes.in Accounting Policy

B. Restated Balance

C. Surplus
.1 Surplus (Defigit) on Revaluation of

Properties
£.2 Surplus (Defleit) on Revaluation of

Investments

03 Currengy Lranslaiion Differences

.4 Ofher Surplus, {specify)

19,741

18,744

C.4.1 Other comprehensive icome

4.2

c4.3

cA4

C45
D. Net Income {Loss) for the Feriod

1,082,218
(600,008

1.032.216
{600.000}]

E. Dividends (negative entry)

F. Appropriation for (specifyl
F

 F1

£

]

F.d

F.5

G. issuange of Capital Stock

.1 Commeon Stock

.2 Preferred Stock

G.3 Others
H. Balance. 2016

474.736

109,009 |

1,107,223

1,032,487

4.1 Correction of Eror (s}

H.7 Changss in Accounting Pollcy

|. Restated Balance

4. Surplus
J.1 Surplus {Deficit)

on Revaiuation of

pProperties _
J.2 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of

Invesiments

1.3 Currency Transiation Difference

|4 Other Surolys (specify)

{254.763)

{254,763))

J.4.1 Other comprehansive 10ss

J.4.2

4.3

J4.4

J4.5
K. Net Ingome {Logs) for the Period
L. Dividends {negative entry)
J. Appropriation for {specify)

3,029,090
1,008.060 1,000,000

]
3,029,090

i,
.2
M.3
M.4

M.5

N Issuange of Capltal Stock
N_1 Common Stogk

N.2 Preferrad Stock

N.3 Others

(429,499

160,000 |

 Meadold

3,136,313 2,806,814

0. Balance, 2017
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CERTIFICATION

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article 9(B) of the 1987 Philippine Constitution,
none of the Directors, Independent Directors and Officers of GMA Holdings, Inc. are elected as public
servants and/or appointed in any government agency, local or foreign, without authority of law;
provided however that it must be disclosed that as of this date, Dr. Jaime C. Laya is a Trustee (Director)
of the Cultural Center of the Philippines and Atty. Roberto Rafael V. Lucila is a member of the Bicol

University Board of Regents.

Issued this 10th.day of April 2018.

ROBERTO RAFAEL V. LUCILA .
Compliance Officer
GMA Holdings, Inc.



Acacia Street, Damarifias Village, Makati City,

CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

|, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of legal ‘age and a resident of 1203
after having been duly sworn fo in

accordance with law, do hereby_deolare that:

1.

| am a nomineé for independent director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. and have

‘been its independent director since 2009;

| am affiliated with the following publicly-listed companies:

Company/Organization Position/ Period of
Relationship ’ Service

GMA Network, Inc. Independent Director 2007 - present
First Philippine Heldings Corporation Independent Director 2007 - present
Metro Pacific Investments Corporation Independent Director 2007 - present
Manila Electric Company Independent Director 2008 - present
Robinsons Land Corporation ' Independent Director 2008 ~ present
Petron Corporation independent Director_ 2010 - present
Asian Terminals, Inc. independent Director - 2010 - present
Philippine Long Distance Tel. Co. Independent Director 2013 - present
Joilibee Foods Corparation Non-Executive Director 2012 - present
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company Senior Adviser 2007 - present
Double Dragon Properties Corporation | Adviser 2014 - present
Bank of the Philippine islands Member, Advisory Council | 2016 - present

(For my full bio-data, log on to my personal website: cjpanganiban.com)

| possess all the qualifications and none of the disquaiifications to serve as an
Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and

other SEC issuances.

To the best of my knowle‘.dg,e, | am not related to any director/officer/substantial
shareholder of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. and its subsidiaries and affiliates.

To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding pending in court.

To the best of ‘my knowledge, | am neither an officer nor an employee of any
government agency or government-owned and controlled corporation.

| shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing
Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC

Issuances.

| shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any changes
in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.
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Daone this ___ day of March, 2018 at Makati City.

TTARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me th'réPR 1 Q:le%g@f March 2018 at Makati City,
affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport Number
EG2160733 issued on September 22, 2014 by the DFEA; Manila and will expire on

September 21, 2019,
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

[, JAIME C. LAYA, Filipino, of legal age and & resident of 11 Panay Avenue,

Quezon City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare
that: : '

1. | am a nominee for independent director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. and have been

its independent director since 2007,

2. 1 am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including Government-

Owned and Controfied Corporations):

Company/Organization _ Position Period of Service
Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank) ‘ Chairman and President 2004-present
GMA Network, Inc. and Independent Director 2007-present
OMA Holdings, Inc.
" Ayala Land, Inc. ' Independent Director 2010-present
Manila Water Company, Inc. Independent Director 2014-present T
Philippine AXA Life Insurance Co,, Inc., Director 2005-present
Charter Ping An [nsurance Corporation Independent Director 2016~
‘
FEscuela Taller Foundation of the Philippines, Inc. Chairman 2013-present
Don Norberto T Foundation, Inc. Chairman . | 2005-present
Cofradia de la Inmaculada Concepcidn Trustee 1979-present
Heart Foundation of the Phili ines, Inc. Trustee ca. 1985-present
CiBI Foundation, In¢: Trustee 1998-present
St. Paul University — Quezon City Trustee 2002-present
Fundaci6n Santiago, Inc. Trustee 2002-present
Cultura: Center of the Philippines Truslee 2003-present
Metrepolitan Museum of Manila Trustee ca. 2004-present
Yuchengoo Museum Trustee ca. 2007-present
Society for Cultural Fnrichment, nc. Trustee 2009-present
Ayala Foundation, Inc. Trustee Z(13-present
Filipinas Opera Society Foundation, Inc. _ Trustee 2014-present ‘
Mﬁﬂww
Various family corporations Director ca. 1960-present |

3. ] pbssess all the quaiifiéations and none of the disquaiifications to serve as an
independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., as provided for in Section 38 of the

Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC

issuances.

| am not related to any directorfofficer/substantial
its subsidiaries and affiliates other than the
Regulation Code. )

4, To the best of my knowledge,
shareholder of GMA Holdings, Ine. and
relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3. of the Securities

5. To the best of my knowledge, 1 am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or preceeding.

m the President of the Cultural Center of
rsuant to Office of
f the Revised Civil

8. | have the required written or consent fro
the Philippines to be-an independent director in GMA Holdings, Inc. pu
the President Memorandum Circular No. 17 and Section 12, Rule XVl o

Service Rules.
7. | shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as

Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules
and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC lssuances.



8. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any changes in
the above-ment;or}ed information within five (5} days from its geourrence.

APR 10 20
Done this day of . 2018 at Makati

. APR 10 2018

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of . 2018
at Makati City, affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport
Number EC3123777 by the DFA, Manila issued on January 7, 2015.
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.“C“ultu'i’al Center of the F’hi‘lippji“neg;

SENTRONG PANGKULTURA NG FILIPTNAS

To Whom It May Concern:

This is to certify that Mr. JAIME C. LAYA is an incumbent Trustee
(Director) of the Cultural Center of the Philippines (CCP).

There is nothing in the faw (P.D 15, as amended) governing the CCP
which prohibits a trustee of the CCP from becoming a director of a private
corparation. Thus, Mr. Laya has the authorization of CCP to be a Director

of a private sector corporation,

Jssued this 6th day of March 2018. A

e

(A__ ENTEC. LIZASO
President

Rowas Boulevard, Pasay City 1300, Philippines FTels: (637} 832-1125 0 239 Fac (632) B34-047 L or 4373663 [ www.culwral cencergov.ph



